Islands Trust
AGENDA
GANGES VILLAGE AREA PLANNING TASK FORCE
Date: Thursday, April 21, 2022
Time: 10:00 AM

Location:  Salt Spring Island Baptist Church - Lower Hall, 520 Lower Ganges Road
1. AGENDA 10:00 - 10:05

1.1 Approval of Agenda

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 10:05 -10:10
2.1. Draft minutes of the March 17, 2022 — GVPTF Meeting — For adoption Page 2

3. HOUSING ACTION PROGRAM TASK FORCE COLLABORATION SESSION 10:10-11:30

4. OTHER BUSINESS 11:30-12:00
4.1. Ganges Village Planning Task Force Resolutions (for information) Page 6

4.2. Monthly updates to LTC through Chair (standing item)
4.3. Adoption of Revised 2022 Meeting Calendar Page 14
4.4. Election of Chair and Vice Chair

5. ADJOURNMENT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ganges Gathers Draft Engagement Summary Page 15

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 1 of 120



Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

Meeting Minutes

Islands Trust
Date: Thursday, March 17, 2022
Location: Baptist Church, Lower Level Meeting Room
520 Lower Ganges Road, Salt Spring Island
Members Present: Jenny McClean, Acting Chair
David Dunnison
John Gauld
Bob MacKie
Jennifer Maksymetz
Robert Steinbach
Regrets: Francine Carlin
Martin Ogilvie
Absent: Kathy Ramsey
Staff Present: Louisa Garbo, Island Planner
Geordie Gordon, Planner 2
Sarah Shugar, Recorder
Others Present: Laura Patrick, Local Trustee

These minutes follow the order of the agenda although the sequence may have varied.

Chair McClean called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. and acknowledged the meeting is being held in
Coast Salish First Nations treaty and traditional territory. Chair McClean welcomed new members
Jennifer Maksymetz and Robert Steinbach. Introductions were carried out. It was noted Sebastion
Moffatt has resigned from the Task Force.

1. AGENDA

By general consent, the agenda was adopted.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

2.1 Approval of Draft Minutes for February 17, 2022

DRAFT 1
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
March 17, 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 2 of 120



3.

It was MOVED and SECONDED,
That the minutes of the February 17, 2022 Ganges Village Area Task Force meeting were
adopted.

CARRIED

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

3.1

3.2

33

Ganges Village Planning Task Force Resolutions

The Ganges Village Planning Task Force Resolutions document was received.

2007 Report vs. new Area Plan policies

Planner Garbo presented the draft Ganges (Shiya’hwt/SYOW T) Village Area Plan 2023-
2050 document for discussion.

In discussion the following items were noted:

There was a comment that approximately 10% of action items identified in the 2007
OCP review have been implemented;

There was a comment that it is important to focus on actions items that are practical
and in scope. It is also important to remember the “in cooperation with” language in
the Islands Trust mandate;

There was discussion regarding the Part 2: Objectives and Policies section:

O

o

There was a suggestion to not spend much time on urban design as it is
covered within Development Permit Area guidelines;

There was a suggestion that “Health and Food Security” should not be
included as a Chapter;

There was a comment that health includes health facility infrastructure and
also that housing is related to health;

There was a suggestion to replace the “Health and Food Security” Chapter
heading with “Arts and Culture”;

There was a suggestion that arts and culture should be it's own chapter as it
includes climate change, tourism, education, economics, housing.

A member reported she submitted a document entitled “Arts Intrinsic Role
in Insuring Healthy, Resilient and Environmentally Safe Communities” to the
consultant. She will email the document to staff to be circulated to
members;

There was a suggestion to add “institution” to Chapter 1 — Land Use;

There was a suggestion to leave “arts and culture” in Chapter 1 — Land Use;
There was a question whether the Objectives and Policies section should be
finalized prior to the workshop. Planner Garbo advised there would be time
at the workshop to discuss and finalize the Objectives and Policies section.

Planning for the Two-day Workshop

Planner Garbo reported all project background documents would be circulated to new
members prior to the workshop. Member Maksymetz and Member Steinbach cannot

DRAFT 2

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

March 17, 2022

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 3 of 120



attend the workshop. The Agenda — Task Force Workshop - Ganges (Shiya’hwt/SYOW T)
Village Area Plan — March 26-27, 2022 was presented. The workshop will be held at the
Salt Spring Island Public Library.

In discussion the following items were noted:

e There was a suggestion to not include an icebreaker activity;

e Each member should review the draft vision statement and elements of the village
area plan prior to the workshop;

e There was a suggestion to schedule less time for discussion with the Housing Task
Force and Transportation Commission liaisons to have more time on the Land Use
and Area Plan exercise. Planner Garbo suggested that the liaisons attend by Zoom
and be prepared with comments specific to Ganges plan;

e There was a question regarding why the Housing Task Force and Transportation
Commission representatives were invited only. It was noted that housing and
transportation were identified as priorities;

e There was a suggestion to have separate meetings with specific groups to dive into a
topic;

e Trustee Patrick reported the LTC has requested the Housing Task Force and the
Ganges Village Task Force to meet to discuss common issues;

o Alist of elements of the village area plan will be finalized at the workshop and the
Task Force will schedule a timeline to invite Topic Area liaisons to future meetings.

It was MOVED and SECONDED,

That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force request staff to amend the workshop
schedule as follows: remove the discussion with the Topic Area Liaisons to have more
time to discuss the Land Use and Area Plan.

CARRIED

It was MOVED and SECONDED,
That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force request staff to provide an amended
meeting calendar at the next meeting that is based on two meetings per month.

CARRIED

The regular meetings would be held on the third Thursday of each month and additional
meetings would be considered alternate meetings.

4. OTHER BUSINESS
4.1 Monthly updates to LTC through Chair - None
This item was not dealt with due to lack of time.
4.2 Instruction on maps printing — None
This item was not dealt with due to lack of time.

4.3 Land Use Designations — None

DRAFT 3
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
March 17, 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 4 of 120



This item was not dealt with due to lack of time.
4.4 Relationship with CRD Technical Working Group — None
This item was not dealt with due to lack of time.
5. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 12:02 p.m.

Jenny McClean, Acting Chair

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

Sarah Shugar, Recorder

DRAFT
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
March 17, 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 5 of 120



Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number | Meeting Date Resolution Work Flow/Comments S
Completed
By general consent, it was agreed that representatives from
the Salt Spring Island T tation C issi d th
36 17-Feb-22 (_3 a .prmg e ianspale |on. o.mm|55|on an € March meeting resolution altered this 17-Mar-22
Housing Action Program Task Force be invited to the workshop
to discuss their opinions on the Ganges area plan.
That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force schedule a
two d kshop be held on Saturday March 26 and Sund
35 17-Feb-22 Wo day workshop ‘e € o‘n aturddy iarc and sun ?y Workshop was held 27-Mar-22
March 27 and have it organized around the remarks made in
the meeting.
That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force ask staff to
34 17-Feb-22 |investigate the timing of meetings on the scheduled dates from| Schedule presented at the April meeting 21-Apr-22
4-6pm.
That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force create a Mission
Stat t d by Member Moffat that will include th
33 3-Nov-21 a. emen. I A er. oftat that Wil Inciude the Member Moffat resigned Incomplete
built environment for presentation to the LTC as part of the
Islands Trust Policy Statement review process.
That the G Village Area Plan Task F i list of
32 21-Oct-21 atthe .anges I .age rea rian laskrorce re.celve. .a |.s © List presented to Task Force 3-Nov-21
the Technical Working Group members and their affiliations.
List of Nations, Agencies, Stakeholders and
31 51-0ct-21 That the Ganges Village Area PIa!n Task Force request a current Co.mmunity Groups in.cluded in the Ganges 16.Dec21
stakeholder list be provided to the Task Force. Village Planning Public Engagement Plan
published on the website
That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force appoint Member
30 21-Oct-21 McClean to liaise with the Capital Regional District Member McClean to report to the Task Force| ongoing

Transportation Commission.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 6 of 120




Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number

Meeting Date

Resolution

Work Flow/Comments

Status/Date
Completed

29

21-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force request the Salt
Spring Island Local Trust Committee allocate funding and staff
time to a minimum 2 day workshop for the Task Force to
develop a working draft of the Local Area Plan and include
facilitation.

Workshop scheduled for March 26-27

17-Feb-22

28

21-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force appoint Member
McClean to gather information on First Nations and report
back to the Task Force.

Member McClean to report to the Task Force

in progress

27

21-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force in responding to
staff’s Proposed Area Plan Elements, request staff incorporate
the Task Force’s list in the draft outline. (Land Use Housing,
Transportation, Environment, Ecosystems, Infrastructure
Servicing, First Nations, Harbour, Climate Change, Resiliency,
Health & Safety & Fire & Community Service & Education,
Economics/Sustainability — Tourism, Heritage over time -
History & Culture, Community Events, Business Development,
Water & Watersheds, Urban Design & Art & Culture,
Recreation & Parks Island(s)/Regional/Geographic Context,
Futurism/Vision

noted

in progress

26

21-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force request staff be
encouraged to take a more active role and assist the Task Force

in moving forward.

noted

in progress

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 7 of 120




Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number

Meeting Date

Resolution

Work Flow/Comments

Status/Date
Completed

25

21-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force request staff to
provide large scale maps for the list of 12 maps, and provide
11x17 until the large maps are available. 1. History of place, 2.
Geographic location and its insights (wind, aspect, topography,
large water bodies), 3. Built Environment (figure-ground) -
perhaps a black and white contrasting map could be made. 4.
Open spaces (parks) and vegetation, 5. Waterways and
Ecosystems 6. Character/Style/Village fabric (special features,
building cluster/spread, general architecture) - e.g. the
mermaid statue in Rotary Park, the market space, the gazebo
in Centennial Park. 7. Connectivity to other places (nodes,
public transit, in & out, ease) - including buses, water taxis,
airplanes. 8. Mobility within the place (streets, pathways,
accessibility, activity) - reviewing how accessible these are and
how they are used. 9. Existing land uses and service centres -
circling areas that offer certain services, such as education,
housing, and medical. 10. Contours and level areas - highlight
which areas are sloped vs. flat. 11. Utilities above and below
ground, plus aquifers and well production - including sewage
and underground hydro lines. A map of wells is a way to
illustrate their productivity. 12. Climate change risk areas -
identify areas of flooding risk and sea level rise.

Staff provided examples and have made
further refinements to this request

16-Dec-21

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 8 of 120




Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number

Meeting Date

Resolution

Work Flow/Comments

Status/Date
Completed

24

6-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force request staff to
review the recommendations of the 2007 Official Community
Plan focus group, and restructure the list to then determine
(using the list as presented in Member Dunnison’s excel
spreadsheet) 1. Recommendations clearly within Islands Trust’s
jurisdiction 2. Recommendations outside of Islands Trust’s
jurisdiction 3. Recommendations that are a cross-jurisdiction
with Islands Trust.

Staff prepared a spreadsheet for presentation

16-Dec-21

23

6-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force request staff to
provide large scale base plans of Ganges area, including and up
to the study area boundary for review, and include tracing
paper (30” roll) and pens.

Staff requested further infromation from the
Chair on maps required and types of pens

15-Oct-21

22

6-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force request staff to
provide a First Nations representative and/or expert on the
First Nations issues in Ganges of which the Task Force should
be aware.

Lisa Wilcox, IT Senior Intergovernmental
Policy Advisor presented background
informaiton

18-Nov-21

21

6-Oct-21

That the Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force appoint Member
Best as the Task Force representative to gather information
about the harbour, and report back to the Task Force.

Member Best resigned from the Task Force

18-Nov-21

20

6-Oct-21

That the minutes of the September 16, 2021 Ganges Village
Area Task Force meeting were adopted, as amended. ¢ That
Member Gauld and Member McClean have their opposing
votes noted on the following motion concerning the Meeting
Schedule: “That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
request staff to schedule a second meeting on the first
Wednesday of the month from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. until the
end of 2021.”

Staff updated the minutes

15-Oct-21

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 9 of 120




Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number | Meeting Date Resolution Work Flow/Comments S
Completed
That the Octob ti the first Wednesday (f 5:30
s e B e (?n e s e. .nes ay (from Member Moffatt requested additional time
19 16-Sep-21 p.m. to 7:30 p.m.) be a design process facilitated by Member ) o . 6-Oct-21
i and materials to facilitate this
Sebastian Moffatt.
That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force request staff
18 16-Sep-21 to schedule a second meeting on the first Wednesday of the Staff scheduled the meetings 20-Sep-21
month from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. until the end of 2021.
By general consent, the Ganges Village Area Planning Task
F t staff to schedule a G Vill ite visit
17 19-Aug-21 orce request staff to schedule a Ganges Village s.| e visit on Arranged by TF members 26-Aug-21
Thursday, August 26, 2021 and that the group will meet at
Embe Bakery.
That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force has accepted
16 19-Aug-21 | this as a draft list of elements to be considered in our planning List of elements adopted 19-Aug-21
of Ganges Village and the list can be added to in the future.
The Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force will consider
15 19-Aug-21 anchoring the innermost fuzzy circle and some of the corners | Quorum was not met at the Sept 2 meeting 2-Sep-21
of the fuzzy circles at the September 2, 2021 meeting
To replace the draft Ganges Village Area Plan Study Area
14 19-Aug-21 Boundaries map as presented by staff with circles of areas of Provided by Member Dunnison 19-Aug-21
interest as proposed in the PowerPoint presentation.
That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force request staff
to schedule a second meeting on the first Thursday of each
13 19-Aug-21 month and that a first order of business would be to review | Staff scheduled the meeting and located it at 2-Sep-21

how the meeting schedule would align with the Housing Action
Program Task Force meetings and whether members would
want to take the opportunity for a walk around.

the library. Quorum was not met.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 10 of 120




Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number

Meeting Date

Resolution

Work Flow/Comments

Status/Date
Completed

12

19-Aug-21

That the minutes of the July 15 2021 Ganges Village Area Task
Force meeting were adopted as amended. e Replace “There
was a suggestion to include commercial properties up Beddis
Road including the Salt Spring Island Sailing Club and the
Seabreeze Inn.” with “There was a suggestion to include
commercial properties up to Beddis Road including the Salt
Spring Island Sailing Club and the Seabreeze Inn.”

Staff updated the minutes

23-Aug-21

11

15-Jul-21

By general consent, the Ganges Village Task Force requested
staff to schedule a walking tour on July 29, 2021, 10:00 a.m. to
12:00 p.m. and that the group will meet at the Tree House
Café.

TF members made their own arrangement

29-Jul-21

10

15-Jul-21

That the Ganges Village Task Force request staff to schedule a
meeting on July 29, 2021.

TF members made their own arrangement

29-Jul-21

15-Jul-21

That the minutes of the June 17, 2021 Ganges Village Area Task
Force meeting were adopted as amended. e Add Eric Booth to

the list of members present. e Replace “Many of the task force

members requested the work plan be adjusted to be
completed to share the task force recommendations prior to
the 2022 Trustee Elections” with “The majority of task force
members agreed the work plan be adjusted to be completed
and recommendations made prior to the 2022 Trustee
Elections.”

Staff updated the minutes

13-Aug-21

17-Jun-21

By general consent, the Ganges Village Area Task Force
scheduled a walking tour of Ganges on June 27, 2021 at 1:00
p.m. and the group will meet at the Treehouse Café.

Meeting was changed to July 29, 2021

15-Jul-21

17-Jun-21

to table Item 2.1 - Study area boundary and Item 2.2 - Vision
Statement to the next meeting.

Items were discussed at the next meeting

15-Jul-21

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 11 of 120




Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number

Meeting Date

Resolution

Work Flow/Comments

Status/Date
Completed

17-Jun-21

That the LTC obtain a written legal opinion on the open
meeting rules as the either apply, or don’t apply, to the Task
Force. Specifically the Task Force requests clarity on the
following: (a) Can Task Force members speak freely to each
other outside of scheduled meetings? (b) Is there any legal
specified limit to the numbers of members who can gather to
discuss issues/topics outside of the formal Task Force
meetings? (c) Can the Task Force form subcommittees? And
that the LTC be requested to approve the proposal for the Task
Force to schedule a two day retreat, similar in structure to an
Islands Trust Council meeting, that would see the group
members meeting both formally and informally to work
through the major issues creatively. The formal portion would
be in a roundtable format, led by the Chair. The informal
portion would occur during breaks, meals and in an evening
social gathering. (Just like Trust Council) By general consent,
the Ganges Village Area Task Force request staff to add bi-
weekly meetings to the list of questions for legal counsel.

Alyssa Bradley presented a legal orientation

15-Jul-21

17-Jun-21

That the minutes of the May 20, 2021 Ganges Village Area Task
Force meeting were adopted with the following amendments:
o A member requested a list of key stakeholders for the public

engagement process;

Staff updated the minutes

22-Jun-21

17-Jun-21

That the minutes of the April 15, 2021 Ganges Village Area Task
Force meeting were adopted with the following amendments:
e Many of the task force members requested the work plan be

adjusted to be completed to share the task force
recommendations prior to the 2022 Trustee Elections;

Staff updated the minutes

22-Jun-21

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 12 of 120




Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force Resolutions

Number

Meeting Date

Resolution

Work Flow/Comments

Status/Date

20-May-21

That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force request
Member Moffat to provide a presentation regarding the 2007
Ganges Village and Harbour Official Community Plan Review

Focus Group at the next meeting.

Member Moffatt gave a presentation

Completed

17-Jun-21

20-May-21

That the Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force accept the
draft Ganges Village Area Plan Task Force Work Plan and the
draft Work Plan Timeline.

Work Plan and Timeline were adopted

20-May-21

15-Apr-21

That the Ganges Village Planning Task Force commission a
report on the status of the 2007 OCP, including but not limited
to: i. 2007 OCP items that have been implemented; ii. 2007
OCP items that are still being implemented; iii. 2007 OCP items
that are planned for implementation; and iv. 2007 OCP items
where implementation has been cancelled or otherwise
deferred along with causal conditions or rational for any such

delay or cancellation.

Staff provided a report to the Task Force

20-May-21

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 13 of 120



—

Islands Trust

2022 Regular Meetings
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

AS of April 21, 2022 Regular Meetingsare scheduled for:

DATE TIME LOCATION
Thursday April 21 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday May 4 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday May 19 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday June 1 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday June 16 10:00 AM Baptist Church'520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday July 6 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday July21 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday August 3 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday August 18 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road

Thursday September 7 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday | September 15 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road

Thursday October 5 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday October 20 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday November 2 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday November 17 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road
Thursday December 7 5:00 PM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road

Thursday December 15 10:00 AM Baptist Church 520 Lower Ganges Road

The proposed meetingagenda is usually available one week prior to the meeting and may be obtained at the Islands
Trust office or on our website.

VISIT OUR WEBSITE: www.islandstrust.bc.ca
CONTACT US AT 250-537-9144 OR: ssiinfo@islandstrust.bc.ca

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 14 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

Gathers

b

Islands Trust

APRIL 2022

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt)
Village Area Plan

Engagement
Summary



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

dNNe

STUDIO Ahne Studio led the engagement process.

d hcma created the project identity.

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 16 of 120



Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

COMMUNITY SURVEY

IN-PERSON VILLAGE ACTIVITIES

VIRTUAL SESSIONS AND IN-SCHOOL ACTIVITIES

EVALUATION AND NEXT STEPS

APPENDIX: CENTRE SCHOOL STUDENT IDEAS FOR THE VILLAGE

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 17 of 120

Issued: April 2022

15
57
79
95
99



SYOWT

Shiyahwt

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 18 of 120



Executive
sSummary

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary . Issued: April 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 19 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Who We Reached

Over 800 participants provided input in

a far-reaching engagement process that
sought community input on the future of
Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village. What was
heard will be used to help create a vision,
objectives, and policies in a Village Area

Plan that will guide future development and
change.

The process reached out to the broad public
as well as specific agencies and community
groups, including some of the demographics
whose voices can go unheard in planning
processes. The process heard from people of
all ages, renters and home-owners, business
owners and employees, and people belonging
to equity-denied groups.

How We Reached Them

In addition to extensive outreach and
promotions, engagement activities included
an online survey (with hard/physical copies
also available for participants), walkshops,
online sessions, a drop-in “ldeas Fair”, pop-
up engagement around the village, and

a conversation circle with underhoused
residents.

Evaluations by participants on the quality of
their experience with the engagement were
largely positive.

Gathers

What We Heard

Input was plentiful and diverse, however
several themes emerged across the various
engagement activities. The strongest themes
are as follows:

Walkable Village

Some of people’s favourite attributes of the
village are its walking connections and the

way they connect residents with places of

nature or gathering. People enjoy bumping

into neighbours and others while on foot.

At the same time, the village is currently seen
as car-oriented and hostile to pedestrians.
Participants want to see parking better
managed, less congestion, and less
vehicular traffic overall. People want the
village to prioritize travel by foot (or bicycle
or wheelchair) so that the experience is

safe, accessible, and delightful, and better
contributes to public life.

Affordable Housing

Affordability overall is a real concern on the
island, with locals expressing fear that the
village is decreasingly accessible to working
families, seniors, young people, artists, and
others. People see affordable housing as
being a top priority, which could include
rental, non-market, low-income, and seniors
housing, and more. People who are currently
inadequately housed have underscored this
as a priority as well.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 20 of 120



Village Housing

Related to the topic of affordable housing,
people want to see more housing generally
in the village - including above commercial
spaces — to provide homes for people
employed in local businesses, to create more
transportation choices, to support local
businesses, and to create an active night
life. People also understand that increasing
residential density in the village helps prevent
sprawl and fragmentation of habitat outside
the village.

Public Life and Gathering Spaces

Some of peoples’ favourite places in the
village are those where they connect with
other people and local culture. These spaces
range from small sitting areas like those

near the Treehouse, to the boardwalk and
public parks. On the other hand, people want
more spaces to informally gather in outdoor
spaces, including in parks, streets, and in

a potentially new/central gathering space
like a village square. These spaces would
provide opportunities for mingling, taking in
events and the arts, celebrating local food,
and more. People also want to see indoor
community spaces, including spaces and
amenities for youth.

Folks living rough and dealing with addictions
and mental health challenges have suggested
that new, welcoming public spaces - like
communal kitchens and maker spaces -
would improve life on the island.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Green Spaces and Natural
Landscapes

Related to the “public life and gathering
spaces” theme, people cherish the village’s
parks and other green spaces for coming
together, respite, habitat/nature, active play
and performances, and events. There is also
some concern that some of these spaces
are unkept and need better maintenance or
beautification.

People wish to see more trees that provide
shade and beauty, and more spaces for being
in nature. Many responses spoke to healthy
and/or restored natural landscapes and
habitat areas.

Centennial Park

Centennial Park was one of the most
commonly referenced places in the village.
People describe the park as an important
community gathering place near the water,
one that has been vital to the village for

many years. It was also identified more

than any other space as having challenges,
due to concerns about safety and comfort
associated with off-leash dogs, drinking, drug
use, and perceived aggressive behaviours.

At the same time, the folks living rough who
use the park are aware that there is a stigma
associated with them being there. However
for underhoused people, public spaces

like this one are important social spaces,
particularly as there are little to no other
places for them to gather and experience
community.

Issued: April 2022 3

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 21 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Local Businesses

People cherish local businesses, and

the opportunities they bring for social
interaction, enjoying food, taking in music
and culture, and generally enjoying village
life. Participants also value the historic
importance and iconic nature of some
businesses, and they see them as essential
to local character and identity. People want
to see more businesses — a high diversity of
shops and retail destinations — and they want
to support local products, local business
owners, and local people.

Waterfront and Boardwalk

The harbour setting of the village — including
the views, natural habit, sensorial experience
of the water, and marina and docks - is
greatly valued. People enjoy both the
activities and respite offered by the Salish
Sea. However people also want better public
access to and along the water, and frequently
mention the desire to see the boardwalk /
habour walk completed. They aspire to have
better views and opportunities to linger near
the water.

Village Character

Participants value the village’s unique
character, with descriptions ranging

from a historic, small-scale, “small town”
atmosphere, to being quirky, whimsical,

and organic in a way that is authentic and
unpretentious. People envision strengthened
character in the future, and recognize the
importance that building character plays in
overall streetscape quality and experience.

Gathers

Other

Other themes that emerged include a desire
for:

e genuine reconciliation, decolonization, and
increased presence of Indigenous peoples
and knowledge;

e vibrancy all day (including evenings) and
all year;

e cleaner and better maintained public
spaces, including in locations like Gasoline
alley;

e more or improved public realm amenities
like seating, waste receptacles, and
toilets;

e improved sense of safety, particularly for
children and families;

e continued support for the public library as
a vital, inclusive community asset;

more public art and creative spaces and
venues for art and artists;

e an overall sense of inclusivity and
welcome to all;

e better climate action in terms of both
mitigation and adaptation, including
preparing for sea level rise;

e expanded market opportunities and food
production/culture; and

a reimagined firehall.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 22 of 120



Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summar

- y . Issued: April 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 23 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

A photo of walkshop participants
discussing important community
topics during one of two guided
village tours.

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 24 of 120



Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022 7
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 25 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 26 of 120



Introduction

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary i Issued: April 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 27 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Engagement Objectives and
Values

This report provides an overview of the
engagement activities undertaken — and
input received — between November 2021
and February 2022 as part of the Ganges
Village Area Plan process. The planning
process is intended to ensure development
occurs in a coordinated, sustainable, and
resilience manner in order to address issues
impacting the social, economic, cultural,
and environmental sustainability of Ganges
Village.

The overarching objectives for this
engagement were to launch the engagement
process and to inform development of a
vision, objectives, and overall plan. Additional
engagement will occur once the vision and
objectives are developed, to further inform
the creation of the plan.

The engagement process was designed in a
way that acknowledges that: people deserve
to be part of the planning processes that
affect their lives; people are experts in their
own lived experiences and therefore have
inherent expertise to share; and people’s
input strengthens the plan and planning
process. Engagement also aligned with
Islands Trust’s values of inclusion, respect,
community voice, transparency, innovation,
whole and equitable involvement, and on-
going evaluation.

Gathers

Participation Level

The engagement level — as defined by

the International Association of Public
Participation (IAP2) Framework’s Spectrum of
Public Participation —is “involve”.

This means that the project team will “work
directly with the public throughout the
process to ensure that public concerns and
aspirations are consistently understood and
considered”.

The promise to the community is that “we will
work with you to ensure that your concerns
and aspirations are collected and will directly
be reflected in the alternatives developed.
We will provide feedback on how public input
influenced the draft and final plans.”

Engagement Activities

The engagement activities described in

this document posed similar questions
through through diverse channels and varied
participation opportunities that included both
virtual and in-person activities across the
village.

Consistent with the engagement objectives
and values, the desired outcomes of the
following activities are to: raise awareness
about the planning process; obtain input on
assets, issues, aspirations, and ideas; and
reach both the broad public as well as diverse
participants, including equity-seeking voices
often not heard in processes such as this one.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 28 of 120



To raise awareness and

reach broad participation, an
invitational postcard was mailed
to every household on the island.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary . Issued: April 2022 "
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 29 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Outreach and Promotions

In an effort to reach as many people

as possible to promote engagement
opportunities and build awareness about the
project, several outreach and advertising
mechanisms were used.

Project Identity

A unique identity was created for the
engagement program to capture the attention
of the community, which included symbols
and the project name of “Ganges (SYOWT/
Shiya’hwt) Gathers”. The concept celebrates
the community value of coming together,
while also offering a call to action for people
to gather together their ideas for the future.
Graphics feature materials and objects
traditionally used for gathering (i.e. baskets,
pails, bags) with an implicit invitation for
residents and others to “fill” these with their
hopes and ideas for the village.

The project identity was created through
input from the Task Force, and was integrated
into all promotional and engagement
materials.

Website

The project website was updated with
the project identity, information about the
process, and opportunities for engagement.

Gathers

Poster

Dozens of posters were posted in high-
traffic locations around Salt Spring Island.

It included brief information about the
process, as well as engagement events

and opportunities. A link and QR code were
included to direct people to the website and
online survey.

Postcards

Postcards with the same information
contained in the poster were mailed to every
address on Salt Spring Island.

Newspaper Advertisements

Advertisements were printed in the Gulf
Islands Driftwood (print version) that
contained the same information as the
poster/postcard. An advertisement was
also included in the digital version of the
Community Exchange Paper.

Emails

Community agencies and other groups were
invited to participate in online workshops by
email. Groups were sent invitations six weeks
ahead of the workshops, and were also
provided with follow up emails/reminders.

Emails to these groups also contained a link
to the online survey as well as information
on other participation opportunities. When
relevant, recipients were encouraged to
forward the email to their members.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 30 of 120



LKD uuest
=

Posters were pinned up inside
local businesses and other visible
communal locations, including
popular spots such as the
community pool.

8 v ULFORD HALL §‘ .

1 | * i FILN g
Salt Spring £
LITERACY

Adults Need Help?

Website!

iparc.ca

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ] Issued: April 2022 13
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 31 of 120



Ganges

Gathers



Community
Survey

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: March 2022

15



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Overview

A survey was launched in mid-November,
with opportunities to participate both online
and via hard copy (i.e. paper). The survey was
advertised as being open until the end of the
year, providing a 6-week participation period,
however it was kept open a few weeks into
the new year in order to allow for additional
participation.

Participation was high, with 553 surveys
completed. 550 were completed online, and
three were completed on paper.

Approximately half of participants provided
demographic information, which helps reveal
which perspectives are included in the survey
outcomes. They are:

Gathers

Age

The survey included participation by all age
groups except for those under the age of
18. Likewise, very few participants identified
as students. This is common for surveys
and was anticipated, so other engagement
activities (e.g. in school engagement
activities) were offered that effectively
includes the perspectives of youth and
children. Other age groups that were under-
represented in survey were those between
18 and 24 years old, and those over 84 years
old. Again, other outreach efforts sought to
include these perspectives.

People between the ages of 55 and 64 years
old, and 25 and 34 years old, were over-
represented in survey participation, while
other age groups were either representative
or slightly over-represented.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 34 of 120



85+ years old

75-84 years old
65-74 years old
55-64 years old
45-54 years old
35-44 years old
25-34 years old

Under 24 years old

Expected Age Distribution  Survey Particjpant
(Statistics Canada, 2016)  Age Distribution

3.71% -I 0.76%
6.30% - 1212%

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 35 of 120

17



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Location

Participants were invited to include their
postal code, the results of which are shown
in the map below. Nearly all participants
reside on Salt Spring Island, with only 2.8% of
valid postal codes being from off Island. In a
related question, 28 participants identified as
“visitors”.

Park

7N
9 Wallace Island

0

Galiano Island

/’\%)' Montague
2 Harbour
3@/ Marine
Provincial...

< Parker Island
Galiano Island

Top of the World 9

Gathers

L AL

Prevost Island

of Man Museum o Sah(\ngéo ? 6 0
+ 5009 %

Mt Maxwell Peter Arnell Parko
Provincial

arl v 6
a0 ) =
0 /“99 9 0
ﬂ\ s Ruckle Provincial Parko u

9 Beaver Point g
N g
0

&
&

2
2 'b(\
& §

Fulfor
Harbour 6
6.

Genoa Bay

Musgrave
Landing

Cowichan Bay

O

Mt Tuam
Ecological
Reserve

Portland Island

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 36 of 120

iz Bay,

8C-Tsay



Other Demographic
Information

Among the participants providing
demographic information:

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

~14% identified as renters, compared to
~25% on the island

~7% identified as low income compared
with ~8% on the island

~3% identified as single parents,
compared with ~13% on the island

~2% identified as Indigenous, compared
with ~4% on the island

~1% identified as Black, compared with
~1% on the island

~2% identified as a Person of Colour,
compared with ~4% on the island

As many of these participants belong to
equity-denied groups, the engagement
process was designed to include activities
that would be effective at reaching more of
these voices. Examples of activities included:
workshops with agencies that work with
equity-denied groups; a conversation circle
with people experiencing homelessness,
housing insecurity, and challenges with
mental health and addictions; and pop-up
engagement, which brought the engagement
to the streets and public spaces around the
village, capturing the input of passersby
including those who might not otherwise
participate in this engagement.

The survey heard from non-binary and
LGBTQ2S+ people, and persons with
disabilities, however it is difficult to ascertain
whether participation is proportionate to
island demographics because these data
are not readily available. However the survey
input of these groups — as well as those from
the equity-denied groups listed above - has
been filtered and reviewed to check for
unique perspectives and views that would
otherwise be diluted in the broader survey
results.

The survey also heard from retirees (~28%
of participants providing demographic
information), international immigrants
(~13%), as well as both business owners and
employees.

Issued: April 2022 19

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 37 of 120



How do you see Ganges (SYOWT/ Shiya’hwt)
Village today?

What place do you cherish in the
Ganges (SYOWT/ Shiya’hwt) Village?

Almost 300 responses to this question were
received and coded by theme. The following
chart presents the themes that were each
mentioned more than 10 times, highlighting
the proportion of responses that included
each theme. Some responses included more
than one theme.

Parks and Green Space (33%)
Waterfront/Harbour (24%)

Local Restaurants and Businesses (21%)

Boardwalk (15%)

Walkability and Public Realm (9%)

Library (8%)

Art Galleries/Spaces and Community Hall (7%)

Village Character (6%)

Farmers Market (4%)

Quotes in the following pages
are representative of those
received for each theme.

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 38 of 120



Parks and Green Space

With almost one in three responses
mentioning a park or green space, this theme
emerged as the most dominant cherished
place. By a wide margin, the most frequently
cited park was Centennial Park. Participants
value this space as a community hub and
important gathering place near the water.
Many participants reminisced about spending
time in this park for many years, including as
children, teenagers, and adults.

Other frequently mentioned parks were
Mouat Park and the United Church Meadow.
Grace Point Square was also commonly listed.

People value green spaces and parks as
places for gathering and community (i.e. non-
commercial spaces that are welcoming and
“free” for everyone), respite, habitat/nature,
active play and performances, and events
ranging from bi-weekly markets to annual
celebrations.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Centennial park, a
gathering place, Saturday
market, the children’s
playground, People
gathering to play music
and dance. A great family
meeting and gathering
place.

The little park behind island
savings. It is typically a quiet
spot and it's very nice to sit
in the grass in the summer
on your lunch break or with
a coffee.

The common community
gardens & spaces & parks-
green spaces. Clean Places
to visit, kids play & picnic.

Issued: April 2022 21

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 39 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Waterfront/Harbour

Nearly one in four participants mention
the waterfront/harbour in response to this
question.

Specific attributes that were frequently
mentioned include views out to the harbour,
connections between land and water,
natural habitat, the marina and docks, and
public access to — and along — the water.
Participants appreciate both the peaceful
moments it offers, as well as the activities
that take place there (e.qg. float planes and
boats coming and going).

People value the deeply sensorial experience
of the Salish Sea - its smell, sounds, sight,
and touch.

Participants appreciate how the water
provides a uniquely beautiful, natural setting
for the village. It provides respite, interest,
and sense of place and history. It also helps
set Ganges Village apart from other places.

Gathers

[ love the smell of the sea,
the harbour activities with
boats and seaplanes coming
in and going out.

You can experience the
Salish sea, look out and see
islands, water. In places
when the tide is low you
can walk on the shore, see
the water up close. Viewing
and being near the water
IS soothing, reassuring.
Having access to the water
Is extremely important to
me.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 40 of 120



The harbour location I
cherish for its ancient
association with Indigenous
people. The tidal foreshore
area and shoreline
continues to exude a sense

The water - from the
docks, wharves, beaches,
walkways.

[ cherish the water view
from above the information

of deep connection to nature ~panels uphill from

as the tide breathes to keep
time.

The waters that surround
Ganges, both fresh and salt,
are the essence of place. [
cherish that they exist, as
beat up by humans as they
are, and these waters give
me hope that humans will
plan to honour the waters
above all else.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Harbours End Marine.
have walked past this for
25 years in all seasons, all
weathers, and it draws my
attention and spirit out to
sea. When ['was a school
teacher I often brought
students down to the water's
edge on impromptu 'field
trips’. I know this place
nourished them, as well.

Issued: April 2022 23

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 41 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Local Restaurants and Businesses

Over one in five participants mention local
businesses — usually food-related —in
response to this question.

Participants value the businesses that
comprise the commercial hub of Salt Spring
Island, and specifically the mix of shops and
services that can be found there. One of the
most frequently cited business is Mouat'’s,
given its long standing presence in the
community and continued role as part of the
community hub. Others mentioned include
businesses that have an adjoining public or
semi-public space such as a patio (e.g. T J
Beans), or are proximate to other important
public spaces such as the boardwalk (e.g.
Treehouse).

Participants value the role that many local
businesses play in bringing people together
to eat, enjoy live music/entertainment,

and socialize. They value the fact that the
businesses themselves are locally owned by
and employed with ‘great’ people.

Participants value the historic importance
and iconic nature of some businesses, and
specifically the buildings in which they are
situated. There is a recognition that local
businesses are an essential part of local
character and identity.

Gathers

[ cherish small businesses
like cafes, bakeries, designs
shops and restaurants and
hope to see more affordable
lease options for young
entrepreneurs.

Small artisanal businesses,
such as Switchboard cafe
and Francis bread, who
authentically carry the
spirit of Ganges and Salt
Spring.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 42 of 120



The small shops. The
absence of all franchises
(no Starbucks; no Tims;

no Macdonalds). We enjoy
the wide veranda at T]
Beans coffee shop and how
it functions as a gathering
place!

Mouats Home Hardware.
[ts been a staple for many
decades... I 'cherish' it
because of its historic
architecture, ambience and
historical significance.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

[ love the Treehouse
restaurant. [ love it for its
rustic-ness, the honoring
of the tree, the food and its
role as a gathering place
and a place for local talent
to perform. It brings people
together.

Issued: April 2022

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 43 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Boardwalk

The boardwalk is valued for the views and
physical access it provides to the water.
Specific locations frequently cited include
the area near Mouat’s and the Treehouse,

as well as the stretch near Centennial Park.
Participants value the boardwalk for both its
access to more natural areas (e.g. beaches,
shoreline, water) as well as to businesses and
gathering places.

Many participants also reference the
boardwalk’s attributes of safety and
“pedestrian only” as being important.

Gathers

[The boardwalk near

businesses is/ a spot that
allows for engaging and
safe pedestrian-only traffic.
Because it's somewhat
removed from cars, it s easy
for pedestrians to enjoy and
peruse small businesses

at their leisure, as well as

to appreciate the unique
beauty of the island’s
waterfront.

[nteresting ocean action
along the boardwalk, and
the beach by Grace Islet is so
peaceful.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 44 of 120



The waterfront restaurants,
especially The Treehouse
and QOystercatcher, and the
board walk that accesses
them. I like to stroll along
there on a summer evening,
while waiting for a table,
listening to the music,
watching the boats and the
visitors, and enjoying the
uninterrupted view of the
sunset.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ]
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 45 of 120

Issued: April 2022

27



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Walkability and Other Public Realm

There were many references to the walking
experience of the village being important and
- related — important public realm “moments”
that exist in addition to those already
described above.

Participants value the pedestrian connections
throughout the village, particularly those

that help bring people to places of nature or
gathering while traveling on foot. People also
enjoy bumping into neighbours and others in
the village’s public and pedestrian spaces.

Valued public realm spaces range from entire
streetscapes like Gasoline Alley to small
sitting areas like those near the Treehouse
and ice-cream shop. People value these
moments to rest, people-watch, and visit.

Ganges Village provides
views of the ocean and
nature that are second

[0 none in most semi
‘urban"places, exquisitely
beautiful, even splendid...
and excellent for sitting,
gathering with friends and
pondering life.

Gathers

The tree and bench by the
corner of Mouat s store,
facing Glads Ice Cream.

[ cherish walking areas
as it puts us all in closer
contact with community.
Conversations abound as
people greet one another.

[ love the quirky bridges
and pathways that connect
different parts of Ganges
together (e.g. the park
between switchboard

and the bank, the bridge

between the library and
Barbs).

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 46 of 120



Library

The library is valued as a welcoming place for
all people, and is recognized as an important
community asset. In addition to being valued
as a place of reading and learning, it is valued
as a place for community members to meet.

The Salt Spring Library is
the most beautiful, earthy
library I've ever been in. Its
so reflective of its natural
environment, So progressive
for a town this size, and such
an amazing cornerstone of
this community.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

[ts a free place where all
can learn, discover, explore
and connect in a welcoming
environment.

Awarm and welcoming
place for the complete
demographic of Salt Spring:
young, old, wealthy, low
income, etc. Great resource
for all, offering access to
books, newspapers, wifi
and internet access, desks,
comfortable chairs. Rare
on Salt Spring to have a big
open indoor public space.

Issued: April 2022 29

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 47 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Village Character

Participants value the village’s unique
character, with people offering different
descriptions about what this constitutes.
One of the most common references is to the
“small town” atmosphere, and many mention
the diversity and intimate scale of the built
environment (e.g. small businesses and
lower-rise buildings). Several people identity
historic buildings as being iconic, and an
important part of village character.

Many participants also greatly value the
quirky, whimsical, organic (i.e. “unplanned”)
nature of the village. Participants feel

that these qualities reflect the culture of
the island, and convey a character that is
approachable and unpretentious.

Gathers

[ cherish the village as is.
[t is small, intimate with
a wonderful small town

feeling.

All heritage buildings that
are used as storefronts
(switchboard, twang

and pearl, moats home
hardware) and the little
shops in odd tiny spaces
such as the getting place
(and the shops beside it).
The colours of the gasoline
alley shops are another
thing [ love to see.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 48 of 120



[ cherish it for its shabbiness  Local and authentic spirit,
and complete lack of charm.  things being done in simple,
Look anywhere, gravel in the non-corporate ways. The
gutters, chaotic sidewalks, rustic and personal feel
the unfinished boardwalk,  of this place is special and
the faded road markings, cherished.

cars parked halter skelter,

people living in cars. Even

the inhabitants look shabby.

And the architecture, the

place can't even decide what

it wants to be, a down on

its luck prairie town, or a

strip mall somewhere in

suburbia.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ] Issued: April 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 49 of 120

31



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Other

There were also many comments that did not
readily fit within the themes above. Each of
the following received 10 or fewer mentions.

While people frequently list the farmers
markets in their reasons for cherishing or
valuing Centennial Park, they also sometimes
independently/separately listed the markets.

People recognize that Indigenous peoples
stewarded these territories for thousands
of years, and mention the stone bowl,
petroglyphs, middens, and burial grounds
as important elements of this Indigenous
history that remain. Many also speak of the
importance of Indigenous presence today.

Participants value Ganges Creek, which
weaves its way through the village. In addition
to mentioning trees and habitat values as
part of the valued “parks and green spaces”
outlined above, participants also speak of the
value of hiking trails, natural features, and
pockets of nature in the village.

Participants value the firehall and the public
spaces around it.

A number of participants also indicated
that “cherish” might be too strong of a word
to describe their feelings about different
attributes of the village.

Finally, some participants value the village as
a whole, unable to pick out a single place or
attribute. They see the village a complication
of elements that make it unique and well-
loved.

Gathers

The preservation of

Grace Islet by Indigenous
communities and allies was
a great achievement. Glad
to hear that interpretive
panels with info about
indigenous presence are
being developed.

[ cherish Ganges Creek that
runs through town, along
with the walking bridges
that criss cross it before
discharging out to the ocean.

[ like coming down the
hill to the village feeling of
Ganges.

[ love to walk, birdwatch
and be among the trees.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 50 of 120



[At the markets/, I get to see
friends and other people in
the community and support
local farmers on the island.
[see it as a day in the week
to plan around, to check in
with what [ want to eat for
the week and which friends
to see. I don't go to church so
going to the market is when
[ get to see community and
touch base with others.

Rock bowl in the (former)

estuary of Ganges Creek. It
reminds me of whose land
this is and why we all need
to work together to help
protectit.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Loved the piano project,
hugging signs outside
Chamber of Commerce,
hitchhiking signs at Embe,
bench for musicians outside
Embe, mural by Quwutsun
artist at library, Coast
Salish welcome pole at
SD64 grounds, the library,
murals by Amarah Gabriel,
the thousand's of years of
indigenous stewardship,
the boardwalk, the walking
trails, the farmer's markets,
walkability, the community,

places to meet each other

and talk, the herring, the
harbour and its fragile
natural beauty and species,

paddling.

Issued: April 2022 33

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 51 of 120



Challenged Area:

What place would benefit
from improvement in the
future?

Almost 280 responses to this question were
received and coded by theme. The following
chart presents the themes that were each
mentioned more than 10 times, highlighting
the proportion of responses that included
each theme. Some responses included more
than one theme.

Centennial Park (24%)

Streets and Active Transportation (20%)

Boardwalk / Harbour Walk (17%)

Parking (11%)

Other Public Realm (8%)

Waterfront and Harbour (6%)

Traffic (6%)

Gasoline Alley (6%)

Firehall (6%)

Quotes in the following pages
are representative of those
received for each theme.

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 52 of 120



Centennial Park

Just as in the “cherished places” portion

of the survey, Centennial Park was the

most frequently listed “challenged area”.
Participants most frequently identified
concerns about safety and comfort — for
families and children in particular — due to
off-leash/aggressive dogs, drinking, drug
use, and perceived aggressive behaviours.
Many participants also described the park as
dirty and unkept, with places like the gazebo
falling into disrepair.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Very poor lighting,
especially in the evenings.
Gazebo is rotting and falling
down. Nothing there to
attract anyone, very few

planned activities, dogs

running loose and pooping
everywhere.

Drug use, litter, fights, dogs

[ don't feel comfortable
bringing my kid there
alone if I'm not in a group
of others. The off leash
dogs that aren't supposed
to be there have been
scary. People smoking and
doing drugs is not fun to be
around.

Issued: April 2022 35

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 53 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Streets and Active Transportation

People characterize the village as car-centric
— even hostile to pedestrians — with poor
infrastructure for walking, cycling, wheelchair
use, and other forms of active transportation.
Participants are concerned by the poor
condition of sidewalks and crosswalks, or
the lack thereof. Many indicated accessibility
concerns, noting that walking is especially
hazardous for older people and those with
mobility challenges.

In addition to safety and accessibility
challenges, participants note that the car-
centric nature of the village makes it noisy,
less attractive/enjoyable, and a contributor to
greenhouse gas emissions.

Gathers

Ganges is too car focused.
Bikes lanes in Ganges would
help this. I live close to town
yet feel nervous walking or
even riding my bike. Ganges
should be progressive and
have better pedestrian and
bike access.

We need proper side walks
and ramps to accommodate
our disabled community
members, parents with
strollers and the elderly.

Pedestrians beware
whenever crossing any
road! Cyclists beware...the
flow of traffic cuts right
through the "heart". Town
caters to cars.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 54 of 120



Boardwalk / Harbour Walk

Due to its frequent mentions, the boardwalk
was categorized separate from other
references to active transportation, public
spaces, and the waterfront. People want

to see the boardwalk finished and better
maintained, in order to enable better public
access to and enjoyment of the waterfront.
Participants wish to have more views of the
harbour, with opportunities to sit and gather
along the boardwalk.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

A completed boardwalk
from Moby's all the way to
Gasoline alley. Wide enough
for wheelchairs, lots of
walking, and baby strollers.

The boardwalk has never
been finished! Other small
towns have beautiful
accesses to the waterfront,

[t is a wasted opportunity
for the residents of Ganges,
Salt Spring and visitors to
enjoy the fantastic vistas of
the waterfront as a place
to recreate, socialize and
commute by foot.

Issued: April 2022 37

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 55 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Parking

Most references to parking were related to
concerns about its unwelcomed dominance of
space and aesthetic in the commercial core.
The large parking area at Grace Point Square
was most frequently mentioned. Participants
also raised concerns about accessibility,

lack of trees/shade, and overall lack of visual
appeal. Many indicated that parking should
be consolidated or situated outside of the
commercial core.

A much smaller proportion of parking
comments were in relation to the lack of
parking availability, with specific reference to
the summer months / tourist season.

Gathers

The big parking lot by
Thriftys, Mouats, etc. [ want
a Ganges that is pleasant to
walk in. I don't like dodging
cars, they seem to have the
right of way.

Moving a parking lot from
the centre of Ganges. It s like
having a parking garage for
our main feature.

Presently Saturdays there
is little or no parking
available. Used to be just
in the summer months
but now it is almost every
Saturday.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 56 of 120



Other Public Realm

Several comments about public realm were
provided that fall outside the themes already
listed above. These include references to
parks other than Centennial (though with no
themes emerging for any particular park), as
well the need for more public realm amenities
such as seating, waste/recycling receptacles,
water fountains, and landscaping including
flowers and trees. Many felt that public
spaces look unattractive or unkept, and called
for beautification of the village. There were a
handful of comments that also called for more
public art.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Downtown looks shabby.
The streets are not cleaned;
lines are not painted,

often garbage cans are
overflowing. Lighting in
Grace Point Square is way
too dark. Hanging baskets
in the summer say we care.
Look at places like Sidney.
They have beautification
projects. We need them too.

The skatepark is in need of
maintenance and upgrades
as the major youth area on

the island.

Visually a mess with no
coordination of street
amenities, landscaping,
pedestrian-friendly areas,
architectural guidelines.

Issued: April 2022

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 57 of 120

39



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Waterfront and Harbour

In reference to the waterfront and harbour,
participants raised concerns about upkeep of
the marina and public areas. Many referenced
garbage and pollution, and overall ecosystem
damage and habitat loss.

Participants also feel there are currently
insufficient opportunities to access, view, and
linger at the waterfront.

Really the entire water
front requires improvement
where it is possible - from
the bottom of Ganges hill

to the intersection of Lower
Ganges and Robinson. It
currently is mostly shabby,
not accessible, and under
developed.

Gathers

The splendid views and
scenic values of the
waterfront are lost as folks
cant get from one end to the
other. No access to the best
beach in town.

Ganges Harbour needs
care. On the beach between
Moby’s and the Marina,
near Moby's especially is
strewn with styrofoam bits
and some garbage. All along
the shoreline this kind of
garbage needs detailed
clean up.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 58 of 120



Traffic

Related to the “streets and active
transportation” theme, concerns about
traffic specifically were mentioned by
many participants. People are concerned
about congestion, bottlenecks at unsafe
intersections, and speeding. Some
participants indicated a need for traffic
calming, providing suggestions such as
boulevard trees and roundabouts.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

In general the whole village
feel is compromised by the
traffic going through town.
The main road is cutting the
village in half.

Ganges would benefit from
far less traffic funnelling
through the village. The
traffic divides the village
core and is not compatible
with pedestrian use.

Too many cars, no

crosswalks, too many cars in
Ganges.

Issued: April 2022 41

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 59 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Gasoline Alley

Some participants indicated that Gasoline
Alley is neglected and appears unkept.
Several comments were also in relation to the
adjacent Centennial Park.

Gathers

Centennial park / Ganges
alley - needs to be safe and
free from being hassled or
abused.

[t can be so much more
and seems to require more
space to function at its

full potential. It has great
potential for an outdoor
local shopping centre.

Gasoline Alley needs an
upgrade that is more
conducive for the market. In
poor shape.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 60 of 120



Firehall

Comments relating to the firehall were often
in relation to it being derelict, with many
references also including the surrounding
parking area, which was identified as being
visually unappealing. Some called for a

new firehall, or for the rehabilitation and/or
relocation of the existing one.

Others identify the currently unrealized
potential of this building and space to be a
community hub.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

The existing firehall is a

landmark and should be

preserved and kept in public

ownership once fire dept
gets their new building.

The fire station is
unattractive and badly
located in a busy area. It
should be moved.

People disagree on the
need for a new firehall.
The potential replacement
options are even less
agreeable.

Issued: April 2022

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 61 of 120

43



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Other

There were also many comments that did not
readily fit within the themes above. Each of
the following received 10 or fewer mentions.

Participants reference the lack of residential
density — and the need for more housing
including units above commercial spaces -

as a challenge for village vitality (including

in evenings), affordable housing, and sprawl
including natural areas. A need for a greater
diversity of uses and destinations was also
mentioned, Inappropriate planning and zoning
were identified as related challenges.

Related to the other comments above
about public realm and other public spaces,
participants expressed a need for more
gathering places, including indoor and
community/non-commercial spaces.

Participants identify homelessness and
overall lack of affordability in the village as
challenges. They are also concerned that
the village is increasingly accessible only to
wealthy residents and tourists.

Some indicated colonization and a lack of
Indigenous presence as a concern.

Related to concerns about the waterfront,
challenges of ecological damage or lack

of appreciation of natural assets (e.g.
Ganges Creek) were also mentioned. Some
participants also raised concerns about sea
level rise and flooding, and the significant
impact it would have on the village. Others
referred to issues of water management and
sustainability, as well as wood smoke.

Gathers

Some called for improved governance
models/structures.

Several comments indicated that the

entire commercial core or village itself

is challenged, often in relation to physical
appearance. On the other hand, many
comments related specifically to a diversity of
individual buildings, properties, or sections
of rights of way. These comments tended

to focus on poor aesthetic and physical
condition.

[ feel the housing in Ganges
should be densified so that
the core becomes more
energized and creates
activity that supports the
businesses. This could
alleviate the housing
shortage and revitalize
Ganges Village.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 62 of 120



Current zoning discourages
multi family housing,
having a vibrant populated
town centre with retailers
that thrive and prevents
affordable housing.

More Indigenous presence.
Street names art, murals,
education.

Twould like to see the
community provide a dry/
warm place for homeless/
boat people to gather--I
would like to see a drop-in
center for this population. A
place where homeless can
receive mail, take a shower.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Preparing the shoreline
for rising sea level,
otherwise it wont matter
what improvements'are
done to human structures
because we will simply be
offloading the problem to
future generations. Create
walking-only pathways
nearshore and move all
building/roads upslope. If
the response is this is too
big, too expensive, then

at least write a letter to

the upcoming generations
explaining why you left the
well-understood problem
for them.

Issued: April 2022

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 63 of 120

45



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Imagine:

Pause for a moment and imagine what your ideal village would

be like.

Please describe that ideal village.

275 participants responded to this question.
Responses were more multifaceted than
those received in the other questions, with
many themes often embedded within each
response. Some themes refer to a physical
element of the village, while others refer to a
non-tangible attribute or quality.

These themes were coded and are outlined
below in order of prominence, with the
strongest themes near the top.

Gathers

Walkable

By far the strongest theme, approximately
half of comments referenced walkability.
People want the village to prioritize -— or at
least significantly improve — the experience
of people travelling on foot. Participants want
the experience to be safe and delightful, and
to strengthen public spaces and public life.

Many people called for pedestrian-only areas,
while others referred to controls to minimize
traffic and parking. Participants described
wide, complete, continuous, well-connected,
and accessible sidewalks. They also
described safe cycling lanes and facilities.

Many participants comment on the links
between walkability and land use mix,
residential intensification, public realm
amenities, and a high quality built form. These
topics are described on the following pages.

An additional 13 comments called for
improved transit or shuttles. An additional 12
comments called for a bypass that reroutes
traffic around/outside of the village core.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 64 of 120



Public Gathering Places

One in five responses referred to spaces

for community gathering and/or lingering

in public. About half of these comments
related specifically to public outdoor spaces,
including references to a village square or
new or improved park spaces. Covered / rain-
protected spaces were frequently mentioned,
as well as spaces for sitting and resting.

The other half of these comments were in
relation to indoor community spaces for
coming together and mingling, such as

a community centre, cultural centre, and
traditional gathering lodge.

Village Housing

Almost one in every six responses referred

to more housing in the village, and often
specifically homes above commercial spaces.
Participants often spoke of increasing
density and taller buildings (i.e. 2-4 storeys),
including in mixed-use settings.

People commonly referenced housing that
provides homes for people employed in local
businesses, creates more transportation
choice (i.e. as more residents would be able
to walk to work), and supports an active
nightlife.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Trees, Natural Landscapes, and Green
Spaces

Almost one in every six responses fall within
this theme. These included references to
more trees that provide shade and beauty,
and more landscaping and green spaces
generally. People describe spaces for

being in nature. Other responses speak to
healthy and/or restored natural landscapes
and habitat areas, including the harbour,
creek, and other riparian areas, and with the
prevalence of indigenous plant species.

Local Businesses

Again, almost one in every six responses
referred to local businesses, namely the
experience of patronizing them. Comments
were often in relation to cafes/restaurants/
food trucks and sidewalk patios, and linked
these spaces with opportunities for social
interaction, taking in music and culture, and
generally enjoying village life.

People referenced a high diversity of

shops and businesses, with a focus on

local products, local business owners, and
supporting local people (e.g. and not “chain”
stores). A few participants also noted the
importance of supporting entrepreneurs more
generally.

Issued: April 2022 47

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 65 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Waterfront Access and Boardwalk

Participants describe a readily accessible
waterfront, in which people can visit,

linger, socialize, and travel along it. The
large majority of comments related to the
waterfront include reference to a boardwalk
that safely and enjoyably connects people
along the edge of the waterfront. Some
participants describe access to waterfront
views.

Vibrant (All Day and All Year)

Several comments were shared about a
vibrant village — one that is dynamic, bustling,
and thriving. Participants described a village
with an active night life, with extended
business hours, and destinations and events
that create an evening draw. Many called for
year round vibrancy as well.

Clean and Well-Maintained

Participants describe a waterfront, parks, and
other public spaces that are well-maintained
and clean. References are often made to
tidying up garbage, addressing pollution, and
restoring otherwise unkept places.

Gathers

Public Realm Amenities

Participants refer to more and/or high quality
amenities in the public realm, such as lighting,
waste receptacles, flower baskets, toilets,
and decorative elements like water features
and street banners. People identify these
amenities as important to creating a cohesive
and attractive character in the village, and
often reference links to walkability, safety,
and cleanliness.

Safety

Participants describe a safe village, often in
reference to Centennial Park and seeing the
elimination of public drug use, off-leash dogs,
and aggressive behaviours. Participants often
specifically refer to a village that is safe for
families and children.

Built Form Character

The character of buildings was referenced
many times, with reference given to them
having a human scale (e.g. low rise with
friendly relationship to the public realm),
being bright and colourful, having a west
coast ambience, and having character
overall. Some called for an eclectic and funky
character, while others called for a continuity
in building design. Several referenced the
importance of building character to the
quality of the streetscape.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 66 of 120



Art, Artists, and Artisans

These references ranged from public art such
as murals, to busking and other ways in which
music can be enjoyed in public and semi-
public spaces. Participants spoke of creative
spaces, studios, galleries, and venues for arts
and culture, as well as to supporting artists
more generally.

Affordable Housing and Housing
Options

Participants describe housing that is
affordable for working families, seniors,

and low income people. References were
often made to rental, non-market, and live-
work housing, as well to housing that meets
the needs of diverse people and lifecycles
ranging from young professionals to the
elderly.

Many affordable housing references were
linked to references to increasing residential
density in the village, including in homes
above commercial spaces.

Inclusive and Welcoming

Participants describe a welcoming, inclusive,
kind, and community-minded village.
References are made to being welcoming to
all ages, incomes, and ethnicities. References
range from providing supports and services
for people who are unhoused and dealing
with addictions, to supporting young families
with more daycare and play options.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

General affordability is also referenced. Some
describe catering to all people rather than
just the wealthy or tourists (though others
note the importance of tourism to the village).
The affordable housing comments are related
but have not been included here because
they are described above as a standalone,
dominant theme.

Likewise, an additional 11 comments were
made about age-friendliness and physical
accessibility of the village.

Parking

While most references to parking related

to scaling it back or moving it — as noted in
the “walkable village” theme description — a
number of comments were received that
spoke to improving its access or functionality.
For example, a few participants described

a parkade that consolidates parking either
within the village or outside of it.

Reconciliation and Indigenous
Presence and Knowledge

Participants called for genuine reconciliation.
Reference was given to valuing and

working with Indigenous knowledge, and to
heightening awareness of Indigenous history
on the island. Many comments spoke to

the presence of Indigenous peoples today,
including through art, cultural expression,
businesses, and in “lived shared experiences”.

Issued: April 2022 49

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 67 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

Climate Action

References are made to both climate change
mitigation (e.g. green buildings, renewable
energy) and climate change adaptation

(e.g. planning for sea level rise). Net zero
emissions planning/design is also described.

Market and Food Production

Some participants referred to a year round
covered or indoor food market, community
gardens, and edible landscaping.

Reimagined Firehall

Some references are made to redeveloping
the current Firehall into a central public
space, community centre, and/or market.

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 68 of 120



Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ] Issued: April 2022 51
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 69 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Priorities

A plan helps address a wide range of community priorities.
Which ones are most important to you?

Overall, the highest rated priority was “affordable housing”, followed by the

n o«

“waterfront”, “parks and open spaces”, and “economic sustainability”. The
lowest rated priority was “diversity of year round destinations” however it is
important to note that the overall ratings were fairly similar across the priority
areas. In other words, the difference between the highest rated priorities and
lowest rated priorities was fewer than three places out of 13.

Housing Affordability 5.68

Waterfront 6.28

Parks and Open Spaces 6.36
Economic Sustainability 6.40
Ecological Protection 6.68
Infrastructure 6.87

Climate Change Adaptation 6.88

Character 719
Food Systems 7.33
Climate Change Mitigation 7.51
Transportation Choices 7.53

Arts and Culture 774

Increasing importance

Destinations 8.55

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 70 of 120



The standard deviations — which is a measure
of how much the responses deviate from one
another —reveal that some themes received
very similar rankings across participants,
while others were more polarized. The
greatest alignment in the rankings across

all participants was for the priority areas

of “arts and culture” and “parks and open
space”, where most participants ranked these
similarly. The least alignment was for the
priority areas of “climate change mitigation”
and “climate change adaptation”. This means
that many participants rated them very high
(i.e. first or second), and several participants
rated them very low (12th or 13th).

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 71 of 120

Issued: April 2022

53



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Other Priorities

129 participants identified other priorities not
included in the list provided. The ones most
frequently offered included:

o Decolonization and reconciliation

o Streets and other public spaces (e.g.
calmed traffic, accessibility, car-free
spaces, bike lanes, parking situated
outside of downtown, completion of
boardwalk, pedestrian safety)

» Adding housing and density to village

e Addressing homelessness (e.g. providing
washrooms and other facilities, safety,
services, housing)

e Inclusivity and welcoming (e.g.age-friendly
town / activities and facilities for kids,
teens, families / planning for disabled and
BIPOC people)

e Public safety

e Improved governance

Gathers

Other priorities mentioned either once or a
small handful of times included: implementing
the plan with integrity; other housing;

more evening and year-round activities;

less signage; focusing on non-wealthy
residents; rewilding; parks with natural areas/
habitat; sports and recreation; food culture;
food security; provision of bathrooms and
garbage facilities; sea level rise; beauty;
pollution abatement (e.g. noise, light,
exhaust); growth management (e.g. village
expansion, population management); highway
maintenance; emergency preparedness and
services; reflecting true history with emphasis
on First Nations; eliminate wood burning (as
part of GHG reduction); waterfront access;
car-free ferry services; water infrastructure;
tourism; shoreline restoration; harbour clean-
up; and engaging artists in built form design.

Many participants indicated that the priority
areas are related and/or mutually-reinforcing,
and should therefore be addressed together.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 72 of 120



Streets and Other Public Decolonization:

Space! Streets are the most ~ foregrounding Indigenous
critical park of the village history and presence in

—- it's the public space where ~ Shihawt with interpretive
so much the social, cultural  signage, art, and revenues
and logistical parts of back to First Nations i.e.a
village life come together. portion of property taxes
This is where buildings paidto FN.

connect with transportation,

parks, etc. Streets are also

an excellent measure of

success. If you design and

plan great streets -- where

people come together, move

around and linger with ease

and enjoyment -- you've

designed and planned a

great village.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ] Issued: April 2022 55
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 73 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Gathers



In-Person
Village
Activities

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Overview

To complement the online survey and
promote visibility of the area planning
process, a series of engagement activities
were hosted in and around the village from
December 2nd to December 5th, 2022.
These included an afternoon Community
Ideas Fair hosted at the public library, which
invited participation in diverse stations

such as interactive mapping, design
activities, prioritization exercises, “big ideas”
brainstorms, children’s activities, and more.

Priorities

Participants were asked to identify their top
five most important priorities for the future of
the village across 13 categories. Below are a
summary of their responses.

Approximately 28 residents participated
in the Ideas Fair and over 100 residents
offered input through pop up stations.

The following pages summarize the input that
was gathered through these various efforts.

As several questions were overlapping in
nature between pop ups and the activities
of the Ideas Fair, the responses have been
combined for efficiency. These include
Priorities, Vision, Honouring First Nations
Territory, and Mapping.

Participants were also offered the opportunity
to share other priorities not listed. No
participants provided additional priorities.

2 2 @ IS IS S 3 J IS @ o & S
IS & o5 9% 9S¢& § S S 9 5 o5 L &
S 9 55 9 5L 9 £ F & S &5 & 9
) o < o ke O N <0 N
S o 009 28K oL 8 L O 5 S g & N
5 o &5 o g0 & L & g ¢ &g T 8
I~ o o ) IS 2 ® > S T < <
L(O S S '3’ %) 9 O < 8 >
N © AN O g N N N
S Q S < S S S
§ 5 S
O @)
S oy T
Y

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 76 of 120



Interactive pop up stations were set
up in three different locations over
two days: on the sidewalk outside
Creekhouse, in front of Country
Grocer, and in the lobby of Rainbow
Road Aquatic Centre.

Pop ups ofter the opportunity for
passersby to share their ideas,
perspectives, and experiences in
a fun and casual way.

S LA ,:‘ - it PR

¥ "
SyowT = B 3 e i Syowr
Shiyaht
BT Saial  Shivahwt
2
< i e !
e R B

T T

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022 59

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 77 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Vision

Participants were asked to describe what
their ideal Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya'hwt) Village
would be like. The following themes emerged,
with representative comments highlighted
under each category.

Vibrant Public Life

"A place to gather also in evenings"
e '"Lots of village activities"

e "Creative vibrant friendly"

e "Promote arts district"

e "Communal spaces”

e ‘"Indigenous artwork"

e "More music!"

e "Outdoor covered areas for the winter /
rain"

e "A place full of life!"

e "A quiet, natural setting with amenities for
walking, picnics, and community groups"

Gathers

Village Character

"Beautiful plantings"
e "Maintain historic small-town character"
e "More colour. Everything bright colours"

e "Individuality — colours — don’t lose our
uniqueness"

e "Make Ganges an arts village — connecting
all arts facilities, vibrant murals, etc."

Moving Around the Village

"Pedestrian only downtown, as well as
service vehicles"

e "Park and then walk. Shuttle?"
e "Bus accessibility for seniors"
e "Access to the water”

e "Boardwalk"

e "Cycling safety"

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 78 of 120



Community members sharing their
ideas following a swimming lesson.

Village Opportunities

e "Fire hall as a public building"

e "A community indoor centre in Ganges
available to all — a warm indoor hangout"

e "Low cost housing and senior housing
close to village"

e "More people / residential access in town"
e "Smaller stores / live-work zoning"

e "Mixed-use, diverse, complete community
and cultural tourism destination"

e "A space for the community to support
and engage with one another"

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ) Issued: April 2022 61
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 79 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Honouring First
Nations Territory

Participants were asked how the new plan
could honour Hul'g'umi'num and SENCOTEN
speaking peoples and their unceded
territories.

The project team understands that this
question is best answered by Hul'q'umi'num
and SENCOTEN speaking peoples. The
Islands Trust has been in communication with
the many Nations whose unceded territories
encompass the village to determine how
each would like to participate in the planning
process.

Many comments from participants shared

this perspective, highlighting the importance
of asking First Nations as a starting point for
reconciliation. Many also called for land to be
given back.

Based on this, the value of this question
rested primarily in raising awareness among
settlers about the village being situated

on unceded territories, and offering an
opportunity to reflect on what that could
mean for the planning process.

From other participant responses, several
thematic areas emerged. These are
summarized to the right with accompanying
representative comments.

Gathers

Cultural facilities and other opportunities for
community education and learning

"Somewhere to learn more about SSI or
Ganges before colonization. Museum?"

e "Gathering place - learn, celebrate,
inform"

e "Maybe create special places for
reflection”

e "Get us all together to learn and share and
respect.”

Processes and other engagement
considerations

e "Invite them to everything"
e "Arrange their transport to and from"

e "Respect archaeological resources
and provide interpretive opportunities
throughout village *especially shoreline"

Visibility and language

e "Names in English and Indigenous
languages”

e "Add Indigenous names everywhere plus
phonetic welcome sign as well"

e "Murals? / arts"

e "Mouat Park renamed Settlers’ Park"

e ‘"Interpretive signage and centre"

e "Return the village to its traditional name"

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 80 of 120



All communication material
supporting this process included
the names of this place used by
the Hul'guminum and SENCO¥EN
speaking peoples.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ] Issued: April 2022 63
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 81 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Mapping

Participants were asked to identify important
locations on an aerial map of Ganges
(SYOWT/Shiya'hwt) Village, across five
categories: Community Hearts, Cherished
Places, Problem Areas, Ideas, and Other.
Thematic responses for each category are
highlighted on the following pages.

Community Hearts

e "Salt Spring Island Public Library"

e "ArtSpring programs and arts shows"

e "Rainbow Road Aquatic Centre"

e "Salt Spring Elementary"

e "Farmers Market"

e "Harbour area 'Hanging out at the docks""

Cherished Places

e "ArtSpring"
e "Salt Spring Island Public Library"
e "Green spaces, including Mouat's Park."

e "Waterfront/shoreline/harbour and the
need for it to be protected"

e "Beach area beyond Grace Point Sq."

Gathers

Ideas

e "Bypass to remove commercial traffic from
the village"

e "Traffic lights in the downtown"

e "Curated, safe, encouraged “hitchhiking”
stops in town (i.e. car stops)"

e "Make waterfront more accessible.
Waterfront boardwalk."

e "Maintain handicap parking. Not everyone
can walk"

e "Greater connection between upper
Ganges and village core"

e "Beachfront walkway widened and seating
installed"

e "Tactical urbanism wayfinding i.e. paint
direction. Commission artists to design
lighting and wayfinding directional art."

e "Re-development of fire hall and park area
to create large plaza and green space in
environmentally adaptive ways"

e "Year-round covered farmers market"
e "More housing downtown (above shops)"

e "Repurpose Middle School as low-cost
housing for much needed staff (hospital
site)"

e "Expansion of ArtSpring"

e "Support multi use artist / guild spaces.
Annual or seasonal."

e "Ecological protection of Walter Bay /
Estuary"

e "Need to accept water supply and sewage
capacity limits"

e ‘"Interpretive centre, including First Nations
and ocean-related learning opportunities"

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 82 of 120



Problem Areas Other

e "Propane Beach" e "Road improvements for cyclists"

o '"Better flow / pedestrian safety
downtown"

e "Parking solution"

e "Centennial Park. Off-leash dogs, public
drunkenness."

e "Large areas of private ownership along
the waterfront”

e "Sea level - plan for 20-year rise. Flood
adaptation — move development."

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ]
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 83 of 120

Issued: April 2022

65



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Ideate Ganges
(SYOWT/Shiya'hwt)

This activity station invited participants to
work with a graphic facilitator to sketch

their ideas for the future of the village. The
following pages summarize several thematic
categories that emerged from participant
conversations. Some of the output generated
during these co-creative discussions are also
provided.

There is a need to improve the quality and
efficiency of the road network in the village:

o Potential interventions include traffic
calming and narrowing with restorative
plantings and creative practices

o Possibility of introducing a sidewalk on the
water side (east edge) of Lower Ganges
Road or connect and repair the boardwalk

The fill area below the village core is
vulnerable to flooding. Several potential
solutions for mitigation were explored,
including:

e A dike along the water's edge

e Fill in/raise over time with small
development

e Developing the site with structured
parking and cisterns below new
businesses and homes (concern this
would be like a mall as village centre)

Gathers

A large portion of these conversations
focused around water challenges and
potential solutions for the village,
including:

e Capture and store (sometimes it's dry for
months)

e Increase capacity in lakes (affects many
private land titles)

e Access more ground water (this is limited,
should preserve for affordable housing
sites)

o Desalinization (this is energy consumptive)

o Water treatment plant, recovery from
sewage for irrigation

Participants suggested exploring pedestrian
centred streets with limited car access.

o The space between Centennial Park
and the Fire hall was identified as a
strong local example that blends park
space, public streets, and a potential
redevelopment site.

Housing is currently limited in the village
core. Some residential buildings are within
walking distance.

e Opportunity to create a loop, linking
potential BC housing-type developments,
with live work studios and a makers mews
connecting the various spaces.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 84 of 120



Ymt ﬁm#‘e/f

sl ((sen M me

IL L7 up
canr s ﬁamo{u?t”(

/ZMM {orqm:vﬁamaéc'ﬂ‘
}F/éj jewwﬂe:/lsﬁ”&w

Orougple iase -

i K bootittrotion of pollted Sorm 2l
it fomt frleprtlycav frrer
N £uliune - o Inrodu wis

bindivensty [ natme:

The above graphic depicts some possible future interventions to
improve the pedestrian experience within the village.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022 67
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 85 of 120



Possible
interventions
that address
multiple village
priorities,
including an
improved
pedestrian
network and
art-based
approaches
to ecological
challenges.

Explorations
of possible
future land

use scenarios
and built form
opportunities
that respond
to flooding and
sea level rise.

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 86 of 120



How canf wle TRULE THE wiTpe [SSUE 7

Mpodable henes, Sleonl?/
*J‘uﬁe priovby of lable
Nﬁ,(,,/@voud malmj

() con w merers o capocris m kS

toe raan watew
& e Plashzy F g
- Rawt dow nif adumis fH

@r@% OXlaitds %% o el et W T

Visual explorations of how to

tackle the water issue - with

Push 3 vtz prompting questions and some
possible solutions.

Sea level rise and increased

stormwater flooding could impact ; / / @mw ) (e ‘3 .
future decisions related to the / o wala H oaafftg
village core. e

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summar Issued: April 2022 69

y
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 87 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

In Their Shoes

This activity involved reading about an Below is an example of how one participant
experience of a fictional character in Ganges responded to a prompt about someone with
(SYOWT/Shiya'hwt) Village. Participants were limited mobility in the village.

asked to step in to her/his/their shoes to

create ideas for how the village could be a

better place for that individual to thrive and

meet their housing, transportation, and other

needs.

In their shoes...

Use this form to write your suggestions about how the Ganges Village Area Plan can help meet the
person’s needs that are described on your card.

Name of person on card: JIARVA Erac\cSoN A
Your suggestions... Youx L{)"\&\w lMolDPL ({‘éq) 5(40QQ9 U@+ %T
SuTrom omjequnthe villeqe TThace =lonll b
\Aa:& o< boan-bu\ (Placm Cﬁl&ew&kﬁ) QDQ:RAS AL
Mo waey P & o The loac hea bl \rmifm\b

P PYIBS AN (N w&@g\ P l6cos,'!

r

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 88 of 120



Ideas Fair participants taking the
time to write a response to the
situational prompts provided.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ] Issued: April 2022 71
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 89 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Big Idea for Tackling
the Climate Crisis
Head-on

Participants were asked to write or draw
their big idea for climate action on a paper
dialogue bubble. The bubbles were then
posted on a neighbouring wall to allow
passersby to read and reflect on what others
contributed.

\ SNOWT

b Sriyiw

Gathers

A few example big ideas are highlighted on
the opposing page.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 90 of 120



MY BIG IDEA FOR TACKLING THE CLIMATE

CRISIS HEAD-ON IS...

- take 5"&{‘ 1o Srceucage .ﬁvs’ﬁfof: +
08t bring Hasr Voliclos fo Salt -?ﬂ'g.
—nafe Sewics corba- neatea|

MY BIG IDEA FOR TACKLING THE CLIMATE
CRISIS HEAD-ONIIS...

FirgRpL - ENb G4%Jon SuBSIMIES
Plomerhe - ENb 0Ld GR06TH LOSSNG Y INOTROPY
ZETTER [StSTAWABLE LOGINT 7 REFORESTATI

)

PRHCTICES [SuzprnE s/mmhed

Ss) - A%EA SHART LANA USE POLITY ﬂkdﬂ-’:fs'
(i Y REESTS | CoPSTMNGE-LINES ¥ FroTECT MAL
15eAS) SPECIES

9ANSES - ELECTR 1 1<ATION, FEEE BUS  J<wu 772 ES

MY BIG IDEA FOR TACKLING THE CLIMATE
CRISIS HEAD-O

MY BIG IDEA FOR TACKLING THE CLIMATE
CRISIS HEAD-ON IS...

NTIGATION ~ Ketts Ho be cbne od--a—.buf
¥ Provincial leved, pat LochL , NESO Thivgs ike
ban on qas care, elechncal grd with grees pover
Adcp'hd-m - Dovelopment WeEds 1o hb‘; "

Keoved oot o€ Flood P
o coal md plevent Cves.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ) Issued: April 2022 73
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 91 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Conversation Circle

This event involved working with Salt Spring
Community Services to invite input from local
residents who are living or have lived in the
shelter or without housing, as well as those
experiencing challenges related to addictions,
mental health, and inadequate income and
supports.

Seven participants sat with the project team
in The Meadow for a one-hour discussion.
They were compensated for their time and
expertise.

The following input was provided.

Gathers

We have a tight-knit community — many
of us care for and watch out for this Island.

Homeless people do not have a living
room to enjoy their lives, so we live out
our lives in public spaces like parks. We
don’t want to be always watched and feel
like we are under a microscope. There is
a lot of “othering” and stigma here. “If
you exclude people from a social contract,
then you can’t expect them to uphold that
social contract.”

We should have the right to sleep. We
aren't allowed to set up our tents before
11pm, and they need to be taken down by
7am. This means that we are setting up or
taking down in the dark, and we aren’t able
to get enough sleep. This is exhausting
and we often lose our belongings.

A dedicated campground is needed for
homeless folks, including high risk people,
so that people don’t get shuffled around
all of the time and supports can be put in
place.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 92 of 120



Housing is needed that is affordable,
rental, and supportive (e.g. for seniors).
More incentives are needed to encourage
owners to rent their suites, especially for
those who have had bad experiences
with tenants previously. At the same time,
renters in low-cost rental situations (e.qg.
room rentals) need to have more rights to
privacy.

Public washrooms are needed in the
village. While they exist, they often close
during the day because there aren’t any
staff to service them. This means that

we can be forced to defecate/urinate

in outdoor public spaces at night, even
though this is something we don’t want to
do. This adds to stigma.

There is vigilantism and harassment that
make life difficult for us. Some Island
residents smash the windows of parked
vehicles in which people are sleeping.
Others have placed fireworks under
vehicles, awakening people in a terrifying
way. We have had things thrown at us
while we sleep.

Many of the people who are homeless or
living rough have PTSD, and police and
security folks are often not sufficiently
trained in a way that sensitively considers
mental health. This can be triggering for
people, and can unnecessarily escalate
situations including in public spaces.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ]
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Storage spaces are needed, where
homeless folks can securely store their
belongings.

Better transportation choices are
needed. Some of us work in the village
and then have to travel along roads on
foot, all year round and late at night. It can
be unsafe and exhausting.

A public “wet area” is needed, where
drinking in public is not frowned down
upon. This is something that is permitted
in Europe and is being explore in some
Canadian cities.

The library is a great public place to get
warm and do things, without having to
spend money. One issue however is that
people aren’t allowed to fall asleep there,
which is a challenge when we can be so
sleep deprived.

It would be nice to explore some pilot
projects that create welcoming spaces
for people. This could include places to
“break bread” together and share meals,
communal kitchens to make healthy food,
and arts spaces and maker spaces. These
places should send the message: “You are
welcome. Thank you for coming.” If we
had the land and zoning for a space like
this, it would make the fundraising process
easier.

Issued: April 2022 75

Page 93 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Walkshops

To explore ideas for the future of the village,
community members were encouraged to
share their observations and insights through
two walkshops hosted on December 4th,
2022. Conversations were centred on a

range of diverse topics, including: land use
and development, transportation, housing,
arts and culture, economic sustainability,
climate resiliency, infrastructure, protection of
aquifers and biodiversity, and more.

The walkshop started in Mouat's parking lot,
travelled along the boardwalk and Fulford-
Ganges Road, and back along Jackson
Avenue through the village core.

Approximately ten participants joined the
morning session and six participants in the
afternoon. Below is a brief summary of key
takeways from these conversations.

Pedestrian experience
o The ratio of cars to people is 1:1 or close

* Animproved parking strategy is needed in
summer months for visitors

e Main traffic flow through the centre of
town impacts the pedestrian experience

o Traffic calming required in the village

o Possible strategies to limit vehicular traffic
include a bypass or parking lots/garages
around village periphery

Gathers

Access to the waterfront

e The boardwalk is intermittent, but has
been fixed up in places where it fronts a
business

e Opportunity to reconnect the entire
waterside board/walkway

e Can be complemented by ecological
remidiation and protection strategies

e Harbour should remain a working harbour

Development and Housing

e Limit the degree of development to align
with village character and spirit

e Opportunity to achieve a higher
density(for Ganges), with low height
village centre

o Affordable, secure, and suitable housing
needed for workers

e Co-housing as an opportunity that
requires less land availability

o Examples of inovative typologies are being
saught, including tiny homes etc.

Community economic development and
other village opportunities

» Work-live should occur in the village to
foster vibrancy and sustain retail activity in
the evening

o Better uses for central locations. E.g.
banks do not need to be in the centre.

e Fire hall site should be adapted or rebuilt
as a community hall, connecting with
Centennial Park and traffic calming the
space inbetween

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 94 of 120



o The market could occupy the Fire hall
space in the future, as it does not work
where it currently is located

e Islanders need to network their resources
better to support the local economy and
strengthen the connection between the
built environment and Ganges' identity

e Action plan needed as a road map’
towards implementing these ideas
Environment

o High degree of asphalt coverage in village
core limits infiltration

 New development needs to include water
storage/harvesting to reduce water usage

o Sea level rise and flood mitigation/
adaptation are needed along the
waterfront

iﬂlll. JRAs=, WL
IIIIIi.z?' _'JIIIII’ v Illl

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022 77
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 95 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Gathers



Virtual

Sessions and
[n-School
Activities

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Community Organization
Virtual Sessions

Agencies and community groups identified by
the Islands Trust were invited to participate .
in virtual/Zoom sessions to share their input. Our Lady of Grace Catholic Church
These groups each have a specific interest, « Salt Spring Island Community Economic
knowledge, and/or influence/jurisdictions over Development Commission

topics that relate to the planning process.

Salt Spring Island United Church

L ) ) ) The themes of the six sessions were:
Participating community agencies with

approximately 18 participants across the six ¢ Social infrastructure

sessions included: . .
e Environment and conservation

* Salt Spring Island Library e Arts, Culture, and Recreation

e Salt Spring Island Community Services . Business and Economic Development (2)

e Islanders Working Against Violence « Places of Worship

* Salt Spring Island Housing Council Society All unique ideas are captured on the following

e School District 64 pages, with those in bold being the ones that
were most often referenced within and across
o |S|and Pathways Sessions_

e Cycling Saltspring

o Water Preservation Society
o Salt Spring Conservancy

e ArtSpring

o Harbour Authority

e Salt Spring Arts Council

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 98 of 120



What do you most cherish
about Ganges Village today?
What must be protected as
the community changes?

Small town feeling - small locally owned
business, friendliness

Proximity to water - built around the
harbour

Walkable - diversity of shops with many
services within a compact area

“Lively humanity” / public life - a place
for people to bump into people and have
random conversations

Common meeting spaces (e.g.
Centennial Park)

Charm and strong identity — eclectic,
random, folksy

Unique stores and pride of local business
owners

Schools in the village, including seeing
young people walk around town at lunch
break

Pathways and boardwalk

Green spaces (e.g. Centennial Park,
Meadow, Peace Park)

Human-scale of buildings

Access to ocean and the “natural feel” it
helps create in the village

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Hub of the Island - it's where we gather
and interact regardless of where we live
on the island

Events (e.g. Farmers Markets, music
events, special events like fireworks)

The Fire Hall building
Hospital

Library, arts institutions, and associated
infrastructure

Farmland and food producers

Commercial accessibility (e.g. loading of
freight/goods)

One of the highest concentrations of
artists in Canada

Connection to place and culture

Diverse “cultural ecosystem” (e.g. artists,
cultural/archeological events, groups that
animate spaces, library, public art spaces
like ArtSpring, private galleries, etc)

The bringing together of people from a
variety of walks of life, including those
who are marginalized

Issued: April 2022 81

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 99 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

What needs to change? What
issues must we tackle head
on for the future of Ganges
Village?

» Lack of pedestrian and wheelchair
safety and accessibility - discontinuous
sidewalks, poor condition of pedestrian
facilities

e Lack of housing including affordable and
low income

e Need a diversity of economic
stratospheres, so that this doesn’t
become a community that only the rich
and retired can afford

o Lack of density (i.e. density would create
more life in the village, more housing
options including for staff employed in
local businesses, and reduce sprawling
pressures in natural areas)

« Congestion / high volumes of traffic,
including poorly managed traffic and
conflicts with pedestrians, undermining
the “human feel” of the village - need for
a bypass

o Lack of activity / destinations in the
evenings (e.g. includes concerns by
youth that there is not enough to do)

e Underhoused people

» Feelings of lack of safety due to some
of the activity in Centennial Park (e.g.
drinking, shouting, etc)

Gathers

A harbour walk is needed for both locals
and visitors — the boardwalk should be
completed

Litter and need for better garbage/
recycling services.

Lack of housing and facilities for homeless
people and those dealing with mental
health

Need for regulations that support more
creative housing arrangements

Improved transportation options to/from
Ganges Village, including transit and for
those with accessibility barriers

So many pockets of beautiful things -
could connect them more intentionally

Lack of long term parking
Overabundance of parking
Conflicts with harbour access / activities

Lack of safety due to lack of activity, poor
lighting at night

No spirit in the built environment — people
add the spirit.

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 100 of 120



Address climate impacts such as rising sea
levels, recognizing the fact that modelling
shows that part of the village would be
affected

There is a need to tell place-based stories
in the village, including First Nation stories

Need for liveaboard community to safely
access Ganges without creating demands
on Harbour Authority’s infrastructure

and services, which are not set up or
compensated for this use

Art needs to be decolonized, and
Indigenous people need to lead that
process

There are few places to include public art
because most spaces are private

There is a lack of spaces that bring people
together safely and naturally, including

for performances/events and necessary
infrastructure

There is not enough affordable live-work
space and studio space for artists, and

it is becoming increasingly difficult for
artists to afford living on Salt Spring Island

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

NIMBYism and unsupportable zoning/
regulations can make it difficult for
entrepreneurial activities to flourish (e.g.
Pitchfork)

The concept of cultural land trust is
needed, where cultural space is preserved
in Ganges before it grows, just like we
would do with sensitive ecosystems

Lack of/ineligibility for business
improvement association limits funding
opportunities and ability to maintain the
village look and feel.

Need for improved infrastructure, strategic
direction, and coordinated planning.

Issued: April 2022 83

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 101 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

What is your vision for the
future of Ganges Village?
Please describe itin 2-3
sentences.

“Twenty years from now, | would hope that is
really friendly interactions of water and land
and all the people using it.”

“Safe, clean, colourful, with a healthy vibrant
business community and outdoor events.”

“[There] should be access for lots of different
people of different abilities and education to
create a healthy, vibrant, culturally interesting
community.”

“Small, functional, local, better infrastructure,
and better traffic patterns. Lots of kids
walking around.”

“Would like to see Ganges as a more day and
night —and even a 24 hours - village that is
vibrant, where sidewalks don’t roll up at 5pm”.

A safe friendly areas with an assortment of
shops and services access mainly by foot.
Mixed residential development for a variety of
ages within walking distance of services.”

“Recognition of First Nation culture and
presence — elements of place and history.”

“I would love to see Ganges be a gateway
to the rest of the Island or even the other
Southern Gulf Islands.”

Gathers

A place that you can get to easily by most
populated parts of the Island by frequent
transit or safe cycling or walking.”

“It looks like a place that demonstrates the
natural environment it's in.”

“[It shows] the Indigenous history. The settler
history. Both the coastal and terrestrial
elements.”

“It tells a story to both residents and visitors
of everything that is cool about the rest of
the Island, but does it in a microcosm with a
smaller footprint and denser community.”

“It is full of locally owned businesses with lots
of character providing a variety of goods and
services, with employees who can live on Salt
Spring Island instead of in crisis and precarity.
This may mean multi-story buildings that are
still charming and small town-ish.”

“All designed in terms of climate resilience in
terms of energy use, but also adaptation to
sea rise and more. It should be a showcase
of values that Salt Spring Island espouses but
does not always demonstrate.”

“What | see in the future is walkable,
accessible, safe, many local businesses, and
[a place] where people live.”

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 102 of 120



“Safe, vibrant place —an assembly point for
the whole community to feel safe and gather.”

“To be able to stroll from one end of the
community to the other. To be able to walk in
and out of shops, and have people enjoying it
all levels. People living in Ganges.”

“People able to anchor safely and row up to
visit from afar. Music playing. But it is still a
functional working place, with commercial
and emergency access to water. The whole
harbour is integrated so that everyone can
enjoy and safely use it.”

“Could we re-imagine Ganges as an Arts
Hub? Could it be better linked through
place-making, gathering space, public art,
wayfinding?”

“When we think of planning, we should

think about shifting the focus from cars and
parking and traffic, to making places for
people. Public gathering spaces. Connecting
pathways between gathering spaces, and
having public art and events with... plugs

for buskers, lighting, benches, and pop up
performances and display.”

“Centennial Park is the hub of Ganges and |
would love to see it beautified. It would be
interesting to see that walkway extended — a
big loop.”

"Arts and culture spring up when you create
the spaces for it. It will drive tourism, social
wellbeing, and economic development. It’s a
feedback loop. It’'s a sustainable industry and
environmentally friendly.”

“There are squares where cross generational
gathering happens, with kids, seniors,

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

families. Cute little restaurants, kids’ hangout
places, performance art pieces, roaming
theatre, simple busking — 24 hours — always
places for people to gather and have
conversations.”

“Would love to see walkability, with some
streets cut off from traffic. Those spaces
are animated, made beautiful through public
art. If people have a sense of place and
welcome... they respect it more.”

“Café culture. Would just love to go for lunch
and have a glass of wine. A bit of culture is
having restaurants and cafes being more
affordable and accessible for people younger
than 40.”

“To retain the village character, and to stay
away from franchises and fast food chains.”

“I see our village as being more happily
inclusive of all sorts. | would hope that those
who live a life not as blessed could still live
with hope, safety, and purpose. In coming
together, we will strengthen our bonds within
and across the places that now divide us.”

“Inclusiveness is definitely part of the vision.
Open to everyone. All walks of life. All
backgrounds.”

“Thriving community that would be healthy
and sustainable.”

“Ganges is a jewel /butterfly that's waiting for
metamorphosis.”

“Great opportunity to make it a beautiful,
vibrant, gathering place for the community.”

“Will, cooperation, and good governance.”

Issued: April 2022 85

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 103 of 120



SYOWT

Ganges

Shiya hwt

Other

Other comments shared by participants that
did not fall within the pre-designed session
topics included the following:

The issue of the planning area boundaries
should be settled. The broader the
footprint of the village the better.

Limits to growth including ecological
carrying capacity should be considered.
On the other hand, resources can be
better managed and rather the focus
should be on biodiversity protection in the
forest, uplands, and elsewhere.

Fragmentation is a real issue. Clustering
homes in and outside of the village would
help protect biodiversity. Density transfers
and similar processes need to be created/
simplified in order to protect habitat and
centralize the population.

Gathers

Water capture and storage should be
further explored. This should include
incentivizing and requiring it.

Concurrent initiatives — including those
focusing on Housing and Coastal Douglas
Fir Ecosystems — should be integrated with
the Ganges Village planning processes,

as they all relate to one another and the
solutions could intersect in many creative
ways. (e.g. promotion of Ganges density
and conservation-based both address
housing issues and forest fragmentation)

People need to trust this process. People
are concerned about governance, or
outside consultants, or spending money
on planning processes that do not get
implemented. The vision needs to come
from the community — “We need it for
ourselves and for our souls. We need to
move forward and not just talk about it."

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 104 of 120



One Community.
-y Many voices.
— Lot's shape the future \slands Trust
of the village together.

Shiyahwt

e ¢ W oarte
AP
1
COMMUNITY HEART F\N\E\’f ®§ ""' Sivod
; e T I (s pALINL)
Where is an important gathering place in Ganges What pi o i os @i ﬁx'gy other feedback yol
oF \";2,33;

(SHiyahwU/SYOWT) Vilage, where people come feon themap? [ =y
together and enjoy a sense of community? LC K @mu asticky below. AR
Rowtis
DR TS

Eis 3
i ]s!“d “A®Mavs
PROBLEM AREA - mlres s
T HALL | qowt®!
What place would benefit from Doyou have a great idea for the future of a \
improvement in the future? particular place In Ganges (Shiyawl/SYOWT) \
Vilge? fso, where?

E-IJE To learn more about the
AL

process and stay up to date,
280 the QR code using your
one camera to visit the
oject website.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 105 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

Student Activities

Given the important role of youth in shaping
the future of a community, a series of self-
directed, student-focused engagement
exercises were provided to Salt Spring Island
Elementary and Middle Schools. In total,
approximately 90 students participated in
this engagement activity.

These worksheets centred around three
questions to better understand the ideas,
perspectives, and experiences of younger
community members.

The following pages summarize some of the

themes that emerged from these discussions,

along with some representative comments
from participants.

In advance of the community engagement
activities described within this report,
students at Salt Spring Centre School
mapped their ideas for the future of village.
This map is included in the appendix of this
report.

Gathers

PAUSE FOR A MOMENT AND IMAGINE
WHAT YOUR IDEAL GANGES (SYOWT/
SHIYAHWT]/) VILLAGE WOULD BE
LIKE. WHAT DO YOU SEE?

Diverse, affordable, and efficient housing
opportunities

"More affordable housing so more families
can live here."

“"Small houses to provide more housing
(but not condos)"

"More housing/cheaper housing"

“More housing that's eco-friendly and long
lasting."

"More for the homeless population (e.g.
better homeless shelter"

Improved community facilities and
infrastructure

“I would want a kitchen at all the
elementary schools [...], a town garden in
the middle of town, local only (no chains
allowed), ex: grocery stores [...], more
good bike lanes, affordable housing so
that people can actually afford to live here,
homeless centre, traffic light at dangerous
intersections, a local soft serve place all
year long, and more Indigenous education
workers for all the schools"

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 106 of 120



"It would be pretty much the same but
with better sidewalks and bike paths in
and out of town. | also think local artists
should paint murals on some of the
concrete walls and boring buildings. More
bike racks and a market going all year
round in Centennial Park.

"Bike path trails for eco friendly
transportation”

“More bike lanes because there's lots of
bikers and for people that like biking it's
quite dangeous biking on some roads"

"More public transportation”

"Community center (with arcade, ping
pong, pool the game, etc.)"

"Public bathrooms"

"More off leash dog walks for freedom for
your dog and fun times with the family"

"Dog park in Centennial Park"
"More street lights"

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Expanded retail opportunities

"We want our town to have more stores
so we don't have to go off island to get
things."

"More thrift stores (for kids too) for non
wasting ways to get rid of clothes."

Strengthened village character and identity

"A sign saying Ganges and the First Nation
names”

"A beautiful non city place"

“Not to turn Salt Spring Island into a city"
“No fast food chains"

“"More for the LGBTQ+ community"
“More art / culture"

"We think there's lots of great culture
already but there's also always room for
more. Like more diverse foods and etc..."

Issued: April 2022 89

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 107 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiya hwt

REMEMBER A FAVOURITE TIME IN THE
VILLAGE. WHERE WERE YOU AND
WHAT MADE IT SPECIAL?

Village character and diverse public
activities

e "When my mom, my best friend, her mom,
and me were Christmas shopping at night
when all the lights on the trees were lit up
it was so amazing!"

e "Going to the saturday market with my
friends/family."

e "Movies in the park"
e "Watching the fireworks."
» "Went to get bubble tea with friends."

Access to nature and green spaces

"An important moment in Ganges is
playing in the park with friends and
siblings"

e "Centennial Park (before it became center
for smoking)"

e "“"lremember when | saw a seal and | was
by Centennial Park it was a great time [...]"

e "Walking down the boardwalk looking at
the sea"

e "l was walking with my mum and sister we
were looking at the ships and having fun in
the park."

e "Riding my bike in Ganges with my
brothers"

Gathers

IF YOU COULD IMPROVE ONE THING
ABOUT YOUR COMMUNITY,
WHAT WOULD IT BE AND WHY?

More things to do for young people
e "Another skate park"

e "We need a bigger community pool. We
need 2 pools for kids and parents."

e "More activities for ages 12-14 years"

e "Fall fair rides/attractions - they were
taken away and they were super fun"

e "The Island is becoming more for the
elderly and not as nice for young people"

Environmental sustainability

"People taking more care of the planet and
stop logging because the planet is dying."

e "Less garbage more clean air clean grass"

e "If we could change something in our
community it would be the amount of
garbage and waste left on the ground in
community places."

e "Focusing on a non waste community life -
reduce, reuse, recycle."

e "Plant way more trees. Stop killing the
beautiful old growth."

"The water is good but we need to protect
it."

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 108 of 120



Enhanced village safety

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

"Having it be safer at the market for kids"
"Make it more kid friendly. Please, please."
"A more kid safe park"

"Better crosswalks"

"Enforce smarter driving on roads"

“Better drivers"

"Streetlamps on the darker roads"

“I would improve the bike lanes because
they are unsafe"”

Commitment to all community members

“I would improve our community by
supporting those who have inadequate
housing, food, and employment. Our
community needs to address these issues.
The inequity issues need to be addressed
in order for our community to thrive.
Housing and food are human rights."

“"More housing for people"

“Mini house neighbourhood for homeless
people so they don't have to sleep
outside"

"Help for people with disabilities (mental
and physical)"

“If | could improve one thing about the
community it would be more for the
homeless people."”

"Elderly homes for an easier time to be
happy"

"Bike paths would be a great thing to have
because if you don't have a car and you
have a bike it should still work to transport
you."

Issued: April 2022 91

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 109 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

A Ry S

One Middle School class opted to
host a group discussion in response
to the three exercise questions. The
above images highlight some of

the overarching themes the class
explored.

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 110 of 120



SyowT
Gan es

gh]Vd}LEU&L o/

U ;
PAUSE FOR A MOMENT AND
IMAGINE WHAT YOUR IDEAL

GANGES (SHIYA'HWT/SYOWT)

VILLAGE WOULD BE LIKE.

WHAT D0 YOU/SEE?

«::{;

,‘, * r ? \\//
4: T ~
& & % REMEMBER A FAVOURITE
TIME IN THE VILLAGE.
WHERE WERE YOU AND
WHAT MADE IT SPECIAL?
f/ b
L]
A \'é\ i )l{
r '(\&d j \9 E
A 8w N‘f?[ 4
. % - lﬂl:H /
IF YOU COULD IMPROVE ONE THING v W f
ABOUT YOUR COMMUNITY, ch{ J /
A 4

WHAT WOULD IT BE AND WHY? /m

Gathers

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary Issued: April 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 111 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 112 of 120



Evaluation
and Next
Steps

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ) Issued: April 2022
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022 Page 113 of 120

95



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

Evaluation

The appropriateness and effectiveness of
engagement activities was gauged through:
participation numbers; questions embedded
in the online survey; an exit survey at the
Ideas Fair; and informal feedback from

participants.
Participation Quantity

With over 800 participants (representing
almost 7% of the Island’s population)
providing input into the process, the quantity
of people engaged was high. While inevitably
some participants were involved in multiple
activities and therefore could be double-
counted, the majority of participants were
counted only once. Likewise, a high volume of
comments and input was received, much of it
quite detailed.

Demographic Reach

The online survey provided the most detailed
information in terms of who was reached.
The survey was generally very effective

at reaching diverse age groups, with gaps
being addressed through other targeted
engagement activities (e.g. in-school youth
engagement).

As is often the case with surveys and
engagement processes overall, a number

of equity-denied groups — as well as

renters — were under-represented in survey
participation. Again, other engagement
activities were designed to tap into these
perspectives (e.g. pop-up engagement,
community agency workshops, conversation
circle).

Gathers

Participant Feedback on Engagement
Online Survey

Participants were asked: “How do you like this
survey?”.

Most participants (63%) who answered this
question indicated “good” or “great”. 28%
indicated “fair” and 8% indicated “poor”.

Seventeen participants responsed to the
question: “What could have improved your
experience?”. Responses were varied and
ranged from a desire for multiple choice
answers to a desire for more open ended
questions, to suggestions for improving the
priority ranking question.

Poor (8%)

Good or Great (63%)

Fair (28%)

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 114 of 120



Ideas Fair

An exit survey panel was situated near the
exit, so that participants could quickly share
their experience of the event as they were
departing. While only a handful of participants
participated in the exit survey, all indicated
either positive or very positive experiences.
Comments were also left including the
following: “Thank you for the chance to have
input and for listening”; and “Thank you for
the opportunity. Overall, you do a great job of
engaging Islanders.”

Anecdotal / Verbal Feedback

The majority of informal feedback provided by
participants at the walkshops, conversation
circle, and pop-up stations was positive. At
the same time, feedback was received that
the requirement for proof of vaccination at
the Ideas Fair might have been a participation
barrier. (Though it is important to note

that this was the only engagement activity
requiring it). Likewise, registration for the
walkshops closed 24 hours in advance of
start time, which prevented at least one
participant from joining.

One of the underhoused participants at the
conversation circle indicated an interest to
have ongoing engagement opportunities to
share the unique perspectives of Islanders
who are underhoused and experience

other barriers. This participant found the
conversation circle to be an effective format
for sharing these perspectives.

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary

Next Steps

The outcomes of the engagement will be
used in the drafting of a vision, objectives,
and policies of a Village Area Plan.

As an immediate next step, the community
engagement outcomes were used as an
input in a planning session with the Ganges
Village Planning Task Force, an appointed
advisory group to the Salt Spring Island Local
Trust Committee. Engagement outcomes will
likewise be used in a public design workshop
expected to be undertaken in late spring
2022.

Further community engagement will also be
undertaken on the draft Village Area Plan
later in the process.

Issued: April 2022 97

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force

21 April 2022

Page 115 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

Gathers

Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 116 of 120



Appendix:

Centre School
Student Ideas
tor the Village

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary ) Issued: April 2022
aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa



Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 118 of 120



L COoOuldd D Mproved, o

Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village Area Plan Engagement Summary . Issued: April 2022 101
Ganges Village Area Planning Task Force
21 April 2022 Page 119 of 120



SYOWT
Ganges
Shiyahwt

Thank you
Huy tseep qu

HI SWKE

Help create a vision and plan for the
future of Ganges (SYOWT/Shiya’hwt) Village.

For full details visit: islandstrust.bc.ca/ganges

Gathers

S
—



